
Council 
20 November 2013 

 
 

 

 

 

Published 12 November 2013 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend and listen to the discussion of 

items in the “open” part of the meeting.  Please see notes at end of agenda 

concerning public rights to speak and ask questions. 
 
 

 
 

The Council Committee meets in the Court Room of the Town Hall 

which is located on the ground floor.  Entrance is via the main door or 

access ramp at the front of the Town Hall.  Parking bays for blue 

badge holders are available in front of the Town Hall and in the car 

park at the rear of the Town Hall. 
 

 

 
 

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for deaf people who use 

a hearing aid or loop listener. 

 

If you require further information or assistance please contact the 

Local Democracy team – contact details at end of this agenda. 
 

This agenda and accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in 

PDF format which means you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe 

Acrobat Reader. 
 

Please ask if you would like this agenda and/or any of the reports in an 

alternative format.  
 

 

To the Members of the Borough Council 
 

You are summoned to attend an ordinary meeting of the Eastbourne 

Borough Council to be hold at the Town Hall Grove Road Eastbourne, 

on Wednesday, 20 November 2013 at 6.00 pm to transact the following 

business. 

 

 

Agenda 
 

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2013 (previously 
circulated)   
 

2. Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs) by 
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and 
of other interests as required by the Code of Conduct (please 
see note at end of agenda).   
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 

 

3. Mayor's announcements.   
 

4. Notification of apologies for absence.   
 

5. Public right of address.   
 
 The Mayor to report any requests received from a member of the public 

under council procedure rule 11 in respect of any referred item or 
motion listed below. 
 

6. Order of business.   
 
 The Council may vary the order of business if, in the opinion of the 

Mayor, a matter should be given precedence by reason of special 
urgency. 
 

7. Calendar of Meetings 2014/15  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 Report of Head of Corporate Development. 

 

8. Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme  (Pages 5 - 156) 
 
 Report of Senior Head of Community (to follow) 

 

9. Matters referred from Cabinet or other council bodies.   
 
 The following matters are submitted to the Council for decision (council 

procedure rule 12 refers):- 
 

  (a) Eastbourne Community Safety Plan  (Pages 157 - 158) 
 

   Report of Councillor Margaret Bannister on behalf of the 
Cabinet. 
 

  (b) Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan  (Pages 159 - 162) 
 

   Report of Councillor Steve Wallis on behalf of the Cabinet. 
 

  (c) Information Technology Provision for Elected Members  (Pages 
163 - 166) 

 
   Report of Councillor Troy Tester on behalf of the Cabinet. 

 
  (d) Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 -2019 and 

Cumulative Impact Policy. Licensing Act 2003  (Pages 167 - 
170) 

 
   Report of Councillor Steve Wallis on behalf of the Cabinet. 

 



Page 3 

 

  (e) Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline - Investment and change of 
governance  (Pages 171 - 176) 

 
   Report of Councillor Tutt on behalf of the Cabinet and Report of 

Chief Finance Officer. 
 

10. Motions.   
 
 The following motions have been submitted by members under council 

procedure rule 13:- 
 

  (a) The Leaf Hall Trust, Seaside   
 

   Motion submitted by Councillor Steve Wallis:-  
 
That this council recognises the Leaf Hall as a part of 
Eastbourne’s Victorian heritage. That this council congratulates 
and thanks The Leaf Hall Trust for all the work that they do for 
the local community and wishes the trust every success with 
their ‘Sponsor a Slate’ campaign to raise funds for a new roof in 
time to celebrate the 150 years of the Leaf Hall in Eastbourne in 
2014. 
 
 

11. Discussion on minutes of council bodies.   
 
 Members of the Council who wish to raise items for discussion (council 

procedure rule 14) on any of the minutes of the meetings of formal 
council bodies listed below must submit their request to the Head of 
Corporate Development no later than 10.00 am on Wednesday 20 
November 2013. A list of such items (if any) will be circulated prior to 
the start of the meeting. 
 
The following are appended to this agenda:- 
 
 

  (a) Minutes of meeting of Audit and Governance held on 25 
September 2013  (Pages 177 - 182) 

 
  (b) Minutes of meeting of Planning Committee held on 1 October 

2013  (Pages 183 - 190) 
 

  (c) Minutes of meeting  of Licensing Act Committee held on 7 
October 2013  (Pages 191 - 194) 

 
  (d) Minutes of meeting of Conservation Area Advisory Group held 

on 8 October 2013  (Pages 195 - 198) 
 

  (e) Minutes of meeting of Cabinet held on 23 October 2013  (Pages 
199 - 208) 

 



Page 4 

 

  (f) Minutes of meeting of Planning Committee held on 29 October 
2013  (Pages 209 - 214) 

 
  (g) Minutes of meeting of Scrutiny Committee held on 6 November 

2013  (Pages 215 - 216) 
 

Note:  Referred matters – Paragraphs in minutes of council bodies 
marked with * beside the paragraph number refer to matters in which the 
council’s powers are not delegated or not exclusively exercisable by the 
body concerned.  These matters require formal approval by the council and 
are listed separately on this agenda.  
 

 

12. Exclusion of the Public - Motion that:   
 
 The remainder of the business of the council concerns the consideration 

of the confidential proceedings of council bodies.  As such, discussion is 
likely to disclose exempt information within the categories specified 
either beneath the item or within the open summary of the relevant 
minutes. Furthermore, in relation to paragraph 10 of schedule 12A, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. The public, 
therefore, should be excluded from the remainder of the meeting. 
 
 

13. Matters referred from Cabinet or other council bodies.   
 
 The following matter is submitted to the Council for decision (council 

procedure rule 12 refers):- 
 

  (a) Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline - Investment and Change of 
Governance  (Pages 217 - 272) 

 
   Report of Councillor Tutt on behalf of the Cabinet. 

 
Exempt information reason 3 – Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) and 4 - information 
relating to any consultations or negotiations in connection with 
any labour relations matter. 
 
 

14. Discussion on confidential minutes of council bodies   
 
 (See note at item 11 above).  A list of items raised by members (if any) 

will be circulated prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
The following are appended to this agenda:- 
 

  (a) Minutes of meeting of Cabinet held on 23 October 2013.  
(Pages 273 - 278) 

 



Page 5 

 

  (b) Minutes of meeting of Scrutiny Committee held on 6 November 
2013  (Pages 279 - 280) 

 
 
 
 
 

   
Robert Cottrill 
Chief Executive 

 
Guidance notes: 
 
Public right of address - A request by a member of the public to speak on a 
matter which is listed on either of the agendas must be received by no later than 12 
noon on Monday 18 November 2013.  The request should be made to Local 
Democracy at the address given inside the cover of this agenda.  The request may 
be made by phone, fax, letter or electronic mail.  For further details on the rules 
about speaking at meetings please contact Local Democracy. 
 
Items for discussion - Members of the Council who wish to raise items for 
discussion on any of the minutes of council bodies attached to the meeting agenda, 
are required to notify the Head of Corporate Development by 10am on Wednesday 
20 November 2013. 
 
Disclosure of interests - Members should declare their interest in a matter at the 
beginning of the meeting, and again, at the point at which that agenda item is 
introduced.   
 
Members must declare the existence and nature of any interest. 
 
In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not registered 
(nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the interest must 
be reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently notified in writing to 
the Monitoring Officer within 28 days.  
 
If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room 
when the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation). If 
a member has a DPI he/she may not make representations first. 
 
Further information – Councillor contact details, committee membership lists and 
other related information are also available from Local Democracy. 
 

Local Democracy – 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW 

Tel (01323) 415003/415021.  Minicom (01323) 415111.   

Fax (01323) 410322.   E Mail:  localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 

 

For general Council enquiries telephone (01323) 410000 

E-mail  enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk  

Website at  www.eastbourne.gov.uk 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Body: Council 

 

Date: 20 November 2013 
 

Subject: Calendar of Meetings 2014/15 
 

Report of: Head of Corporate Development 

 

  

Ward(s): All 
 

Purpose: To propose the calendar of meetings for 2014/15. 

 

Contact: Katie Armstrong, Scrutiny Co-ordinator   

Tel. (01323) 415023 or internally on extension 5023. 

 

Recommendations: That the calendar for 2014/15, as shown in the 
appendix to this report, be approved (subject to final 

ratification at the Council’s next annual meeting). 
 

 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 It is usual at this time of the year to approve the Council’s calendar of 

meetings for the council year commencing the following May.   

 

2.0 Calendar for 2014/15 

 
2.1 A draft calendar is appended to this report.  The calendar of meetings broadly 

follows the pattern of previous years with a similar frequency of meetings.  

Proposed changes as compared with the 2013/14 calendar are detailed below. 

 

2.2 Annual Council  
 

2.2.1 The practice of holding both the Spring ordinary meeting on the same evening 

as the annual meeting is continued and it is proposed that this also be the 

arrangement in 2015 when both borough and parliamentary elections are due 

to be held on 7 May; otherwise it would mean a council meeting being held 

during the election “purdah” period.  For 2015, the date of the annual 

meeting has to be fixed within a prescribed period after the date of election.  

The date Wednesday 27 May 2015 allows sufficient time in the immediate 

aftermath of the election to take account of any changes, obtain Group 

Leaders’ nominations for committee seats and other positions and issue 

meeting papers.   

 

2.2.2 The legal requirements for holding annual meetings are set out in Schedule 

12 of the Local Government Act 1972.  In years when no ordinary elections 

Agenda Item 7

Page 1



are held a date may be fixed on any day in March, April or May.  In an 

election year, the annual meeting must be on the 8th day after the day of 

retirement of councillors or such other day within the 21 days immediately 

following the day of retirement as the council may fix (the day of retirement 

is the 4th day after the day of election).  The Council may set a time of their 

own choosing (or if no time is fixed the meeting is to be held at noon). 

 

2.3 Cabinet 
 

2.3.1 Cabinet in 2015, following the elections, will be held 2 weeks later than usual. 

 

2.4 Planning Committee and Conservation Area Advisory Group 

 
2.4.1 The dates of the May 2015 meetings have been moved forward one week so 

that they fall after the annual meeting.   

 

3.0 Consultation 

 

3.1 Group leaders and senior managers received a draft timetable for their 

information and comment.   

 

4.0 Implications 

 

4.1 There are no relevant implications to report in respect of this matter. 

 

Peter Finnis 

Head of Corporate Development 

 

 

Background Papers: 
None. 

 
(der\P:council\13.11.20\calendar of meetings) 

 

Page 2



 

Calendar of Meetings  
May 2014 - May 2015 

 

 
Notes:  
Council in May - Ordinary Council will follow-on from Annual Council (with a short interval in-between). 

Scrutiny Committee – +14 October 2013 features the Annual Finance seminar. 

Borough and General Elections 2015 – 7 May 2015 (N.B. “Purdah” period likely to start from c. 30 March) 

 

 

Draft for consideration at Council meeting on 20 November 2013 

2014 2015  
MEETING:- 

 
Time 

May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

Annual Council 6pm 7            27  

Council (* motions 
deadline 11am) 

6pm 7 

 

 23 

(*14) 
 17 

(*8) 
 19 

(*10) 
  18 

(*9) 
  27 

(*18) 
 

Cabinet  6pm 14  9  3 22  10  4 18   10 

Scrutiny Committee 6pm  2   1 +14   8  2     

Planning Committee 6pm 13 10 8 5 2/30 28 25  6 3 3/24 21  2 

Conservation Area 
Advisory Group 

6pm 13  15 26  7 18  6 17 31   2 

Licensing Committees 6pm   14   6   12  16    

Audit and Governance 
Committee 

6pm  25   24   3   11    

Joint Staff Committee 2.30pm   9  10  26    4    

Joint Waste 

Committee 
4pm 

  4 
E’brne 

   7 
Hastings 

       

Elections 
  

22 
Euro 

           7 
Boro/ 

General 

 

P
age 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Body: Council 
 

Date: 20 November 2013  
 

Subject: Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 

Report of: Ian Fitzpatrick, Senior Head of Community 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose To consider and approve the 2014/15 Local scheme for Council 
Tax Reduction 
 

Decision Type: Policy Framework 
 

Recommendation: a) That the 2013/14 Local Council Tax Reduction scheme be 
adopted as the 2014/15 scheme 

b) That a three month vacation period be set during which a 
further Class C local discount will not be allowed. 

 
 

Contact: Bill McCafferty, Revenues and Benefits Manager, Telephone 
01323 415171 or internally on extension 5171. 
E-mail address: bill.mccafferty@eastbourne.gov.uk 

  

 
1.0 Background/Introduction  

 
1.1 The coalition government abolished the Council Tax Benefit scheme and 

required local authorities to introduce local schemes of support from April 
2013. 
 

1.2 The Council adopted a local scheme of support for 2013/14 on 16 January 
2013 along with agreeing changes to certain council tax discounts and 
exemptions. 
 

1.3 The Council is under a duty to review its local scheme each year and any 
changes to the scheme must be adopted by 31 January preceding the start 
of the new financial year.   
 

2.0 Current scheme 2013/14 
 

2.1 The current scheme, which was also adopted by the other East Sussex 
districts and borough, followed the principles of protecting the most 
vulnerable, incentivising individuals into work and that takes into account 
and responds to the requirements of government to reduce the cost by 10% 
of the former Council Tax Benefit scheme. 
 

2.2 
 

The adopted scheme had the following features: 
- Removal of second adult rebate 

Agenda Item 8

Page 5



- A minimum award of £5.00 per week 
- A reasonable increase in non-dependant deductions 

 
2.3 The scheme reduced support for approximately 470 claimants by a total of 

c£67k. 
 

2.4 We have received only one complaint about the scheme and no appeals 
against the scheme rules. 
 

2.5 Members will recall that in October last year the government introduced a 
Transitional Grant which councils could access if their scheme met certain 
criteria. The current adopted scheme met those criteria and the Council was 
able to access a grant of £234k to alleviate the effect on working age 
recipients of support. The government has stated that a further transitional 
grant will not be available for 2014/15. 
 
 

3.0 Proposed Local Council Tax Reduction scheme for 2014/15  
 

3.1 It is recommended that the scheme for 2014/15 remains the current 
adopted scheme. 
 

3.2 A copy of the scheme is attached as Appendix 1 
 

4.0 Council Tax Discounts & Exemptions 
 

4.1 Members will recall that the coalition Government gave authorities some 
flexibility over certain Council Tax Discounts and Exemptions. Council 
decided to put in place: 
 

- a local discount for dwellings in Class A at 50%; 
- a local discount  for dwellings in Class C at 100% for a period of one 

month; and  
- a premium of 50% for dwellings empty and unfurnished for more than 

two years which are not being actively marketed for sale or rent. 
 

4.2 
 

Prior to 31st March 2013 a property left empty and unfurnished was entitled 
to a maximum six month Class C exemption.  
 

4.3 
 

Under the exempt dwellings regulations in place at 31 March 2013, if a 
property became furnished or occupied for a period exceeding six weeks 
(known as the ‘6 week rule’), when the Class C exemption had expired, the 
owner or occupier could qualify for a further month exemption if the property 
became vacant and unfurnished again. 
 

4.4 
 

Under the Local Government Finance Act 2012 which allow for local 
discounts, the ‘6 week rule’ does not apply. This would mean that after a 
period of 1 month, if the property was furnished for 1 night and the furniture 
removed the next day, the owner could claim a further 100% discount for a 
further month. 
 

4.5 
 

We have sought independent advice from the Institute of Revenues Rating 
and Valuation (IRRV) who have confirmed that the lack of regulation leaves 

Page 6



Local Authorities vulnerable to challenge. Their advice is to formally include a 
provision by Council resolution. 
 

4.6 
 

Wealden, Lewes, Rother and Hastings councils have set the period to 3 
months to maximise income and prevent small balances being created, 
which become difficult to collect. It is recommended that Eastbourne should 
adopt the same.   
 

5.0 
 

Consultation 

5.1 A full consultation was carried prior to adoption of the 2013/14 scheme. It 
was unclear if a further consultation would be needed if the scheme was to 
remain unchanged for 2014/15. For clarity, Barrister’s opinion was sought on 
the need to consult on the scheme for 2014/15. The opinion was that there 
was no requirement to consult if the scheme was unchanged. 
 

6.0 Resource Implications 
 

6.1 Financial 
 

6.2 The estimated cost to the Council of the 2013/14 scheme taking into account 
changes to Discounts and Exemptions and the Transitional Grant is £10k. 
 

 2013/14 Scheme 

  

 £(000s) 

Funding gap          1,046 

New Discount 
and Exemption 
freedoms             (735) 

Local Support 
Scheme                 (67) 

Transitional 
grant             (234) 

Cost             10 

 
 

6.3 
 

At this stage in the financial year it is too early to say exactly how the 
scheme will perform against the estimations, although early findings suggest 
that it is on-track to deliver.   
 
 

6.4 
 

The county-wide project group will start work in early 2014 exploring options 
for the 2015/16 local scheme. At this time, a much clearer picture would 
have emerged on how the current scheme is performing in financial terms. 
 

6.5 Staffing 
 

6.6 There is no impact on staffing. 
 

7.0 Other Implications  
 

Page 7



7.1 
 
7.2 

Equalities 
 
An Equality and Fairness Analysis (Appendix B) was carried out during 2012 
prior to the introduction of the scheme for 2103/14. We will continue to 
assess the impact of the scheme throughout the year. 
 

8.0 Summary of Options 
 

8.1 Council has to adopt a scheme by 31 January. If not, the default scheme will 
apply, which will be more costly to the Council.  
 

9.0 Conclusion  
 

9.1 That the scheme in place in 2013/14 be adopted for 2014/15 for the reasons 
set out in this report. 
 

lead officer name: Bill McCafferty 
job title: Revenues & Benefits Manager 
 

 
Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
None 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A (to follow) – Eastbourne Borough Council Local Council Tax Reduction 
scheme rules (The personal allowances and premiums at pages 104 – 108 will be 
inserted once the Department for Work and Pensions has announced the annual up-
rating figures) 
 
Appendix B – Equality and Fairness Analysis 
 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer 
listed above. 
 
 

 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Appendix B 

 
 

Equality and Fairness Analysis 

Scoping and findings report – Local 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 

 

 

Officer responsible for 

equality and fairness analysis 

Bill McCafferty 

Revenues and Benefits Manager 

Officer responsible for policy 

development  

Bill McCafferty 

Revenues and Benefits Manager 

Policy area Revenues and Benefits 

Service area  responsible for 

implementing the policy 

Benefits 

Originator (if not the Council) Central Government 

Is the policy proposed (new) 

or existing? 

New  

Is it an EBC policy or a 

partnership initiative? 

 Partnership (with 
East Sussex 
Councils and 

ESCC) 

Key people involved in the 

policy development and its 
implementation 

Ian Fitzpatrick, Senior Head of 
Community 

Bill McCafferty, Revenues & Benefits 
Manager 

Representatives from East Sussex 
Districts and Boroughs 

Representatives form East Sussex 
County Council 

Decision making bodies the 

policy will be referred to 

Cabinet – December 2012 

 

Page 145



Council – January 2013 

 

Snr/Head of Service Ian Fitzpatrick 

Date of Equality and Fairness 

Steering group 

 

 
Policy = the full range of our policies, practices, activities, projects, procurement and 

decisions, whether it is formally written down or whether it is informal custom and 

practice.  This includes all existing policies and any new policies under development. 

 
 

Title of policy Local Council Reduction Scheme (Transitional Grant) 

What is the purpose of the policy and why is it needed? 

The Government has decided that there will no longer be a national Council Tax 
Benefits scheme from 1 April 2013. Instead the council will need to introduce its own 
local Council Tax Support scheme.  
 
The Local Government Finance Bill (The Bill) imposes a duty on billing authorities 
(Eastbourne Borough Council) to adopt a LCTS scheme by 31 January 2013 and to 
consult with major preceptors and other such persons as it consider likely to have an 
interest in the scheme. If the billing authority does not adopt a local scheme by 31 
January the government will impose on them the ‘Default Scheme’. A billing authority 
can, if it so choses, adopt the Default Scheme as its local scheme. 
 
The Bill specifies that before adopting a scheme the billing authority must, in the 
following order: 

• Consult any major precepting authority 
• Publish a draft scheme 
• Consult other such persons as it considers likely to have an interest in the 

operation of the scheme. 
 
The Government’s assumption following the last Comprehensive Spending Review is 
that there will be a 10% reduction in expenditure through these changes from 1 April 
2013 and that it will be for local authorities to determine how to manage that funding 
reduction. Eastbourne Borough Council will receive approximately £1m less money 
from Government as a result of this change. 
 
Currently Council Tax Benefits is a national scheme for low income households. You 
may get Council Tax Benefit if you pay Council Tax and your income and capital 
(savings and investments) are below a certain level. You may apply whether you rent 
or own your home, or live rent-free. You could qualify if you are out of work, or in 
work and earning a wage. Individuals apply for Council Tax Benefits through a single 
application process for Housing & Council Tax Benefits. It you are eligible for council 
tax benefits you will receive a reduction in your council tax bill and the council 
receives grant to pay for this. 
 

Page 146



The government has stated that council tax support for older people will not be 
reduced as a result of the introduction of this reform. This is because the government 
wants to ensure that low income pensioners, who would struggle to pay council tax 
without additional support, and whom the government does not expect to work to 
increase their income, will continue to receive support for their council tax. Pensioner 
protection will be achieved by keeping in place national rules. 
 
The council needs to give consideration to vulnerable groups in the design of a new 
system. The government’s consultation response appears to be less prescriptive 
about how this should be done than perhaps originally envisaged. Rather the 
government draws councils’ attention to existing responsibilities including the Child 
Poverty Act 2010, the Disabled Person Act 1986 and the Housing Act 1996, as well as 
the public sector duties in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 
The scheme will determine how much support people will receive to help them pay 
their council tax. 
 
Following on from the Department of Communities and Local Government’s 
announcement of a £100m transitional fund available if a council adopted a scheme 
that met certain criteria, an Option 2 of the draft scheme was developed. 
 
The difference between Option 1 (The consulted scheme) and Option 2 (The 
Transitional Scheme) is that Option 2 does not introduce a maximum award of £20 
per week, does not reduce the capital limit to £6,000 and it reduces the increases in 
non-dependant deductions. 
  
The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) have also completed 
an Impact Assessment for the implementation;  
 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/lgfblocalisingcounciltax  

 

 

In what context will it operate and who is it intended to benefit? 

The scheme will operate as a means tested discount to be set against a person’s 
council tax liability. The scheme is intended to give support to those people most in 
need of financial assistance towards paying their council tax. 

 

Working age claimants will be able to apply for CTS, however they may get less 
support than they would have done if the CTB scheme had not been abolished. The 
proposed scheme, based largely around the current CTB regulations, reduces the 
amount of support some people can get. The draft scheme proposes: 

• To abolish the Second Adult Rebate Scheme 

• To increase the level of non-dependant deductions 

• To implement a minimum award of £5.00 per week, so that anyone who 
qualifies for less that £5 per week does not receive any support at all. 

 

Page 147



What are the expected outcomes of the policy? 

That people are able to meet their council tax liabilities. 

That pensioners are protected. 

That the scheme incentivises work. 

That the vulnerable are protected. 

 

 

Age M L 

Disability M L 

Gender reassignment M L 

Marriage and civil partnership  M L 

Maternity and pregnancy M L 

Race M L 

Religion or beliefs M L 

Sex M L 

Which protected 

groups will it affect the 
most? 

 

Considering who the policy 
is intending to benefit and 
what the expected outcomes 
are, assess each 
characteristic and indicate 
whether the policy has ‘M’ 
more or ‘L’ less relevance 
and circle those that apply.   

Sexual orientation M L 

1. Eliminate discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation 

M L 

2. Advance equality of 
opportunity 

M L 

Which parts of the 

PSED1 is it relevant to? 

Use the same assessment as 
for protected groups. 

3. Foster good relations M L 

 

Equality Information 

List all the sources of information you have gathered and will use to evaluate 
the effectiveness, or potential effectiveness, of the policy.  Include evidence 
gathered from engagement. 

Data taken from the current Council Tax Benefit caseload as at 13 November 
indicated that 487 people would get less benefit under the proposed draft 
Option 2 scheme than they get under the current Council Tax Benefit scheme. 

 Further analysis done during December showed that 17 people had stopped 

                                           
1 Public Sector Equality Duty – for further information refer to the guide on same 

Page 148



getting Council Tax Benefit. 

 

The average loss under the Consultation scheme was £4.60 per week, ranging 
from 2p to £11.10 per week. The table below shows the spread of losses: 

 

Loss per week No. affected 

under £1 145 

£1.00 to £1.99 83 

£2.00 to £2.99 89 

£3.00 to £3.99 63 

£4.00 t0 £4.99 52 

£5+ 38 

 470 

 

Those affected broken down by age bands 

By age Number 

18-24 15 

25-34 68 

35-44 121 

45-54 190 

55-61 76 

 470 

 

Those affected by disability 

Disability Nos. 

Yes 48 

No 422 

 470 

 

Those affected by sex 

By sex No. 

Female  363 

Male  107 

 470 

It should be noted that the ‘sex’ refers only to the claimant. There are 113 
couples of the 470 affected. 

 

Those affected by race 

By race Nos. 

Page 149



Asian or Asian British: Bangladeshi 3 

Asian or Asian British: Indian 1 
Asian or British : Any other 
Backgrnd 2 

Black-Black British:Caribbean 1 

Black-Black British:Other 1 

Mixed: White and Black African 1 

Mixed: White and Black Caribbean 2 
White: Any other White 
background 7 

White: British 77 

No data held 375 

 470 

 

No data could be gathered for the other protected characteristics i.e. gender 
reassignment, religion or belief, sexual orientation or maternity & pregnancy. 

 

Although not relevant from an Equalities point of view the breakdown by 
Council Tax Band is below.  

By Council tax Band 

Band No. 

A 69 

B  229 

C 113 

D 38 

E 17 

F 3 

G 1 

H 0 

 470 

 

 

 

 

 

Are there gaps in this information and if so, what are these? 

For instance, do you have information that is sufficient for the purpose of 
evaluating the effectiveness of the policy against all protected characteristics? 

We are able to identify, form current Council Tax Benefit data, those people of 
working age who will be affected by the policy. 

Current Council Tax Benefit data does not hold  information on: 

Page 150



• Gender Re-assignment 

• Maternity and Pregnancy 

• Religion or Beliefs 

• Sexual Orientation 

None of these characteristics have any relevance when it comes to 
determining a person’s entitlement to Council Tax Support. 

  

 

 

What steps did you take, or are you intending to take, to fill these 
gaps? 

Depending on the purpose of the policy it may prove useful to engage with 
service users, employees, equality/involvement groups/organisations and 
other interested parties etc. 

Page 151



 

As can be seen above, we have been able to segment the 470 affected cases 
by race and disability. 

 

We have consulted widely on the scheme with a formal 12 week consultation 
ending on 2 November 2012. The consultation survey was posted on the 
Council website: 

 

• Background information and a brief description of the Council 
Tax Benefit scheme  

• current and future central government funding arrangements 
• A statement that pensioners are protected from the changes and 

that working age claimants are most likely to be affected 
• A summary of three possible scheme options, including the 

proposed scheme 
• An introduction and explanation to each question relating 

specifically to the proposed scheme.  
• Examples of how current claimants would be affected by the 

proposed scheme 
• An easy read version of the draft scheme 
• A pre-consultation Equalities Impact Assessment 

 

In addition to the website various interested parties were contacted to advise 
them of the consultation and encourage them to take part.  

We have delivered a presentation on the change to the Disability Involvement 
Group and have met to discuss the change with the local Citizens Advice 
Bureau. 

Part way through the consultation exercise a review of the responses was 
undertaken. The review showed that, apart from there being a low response 
overall, even of those who had responded  working age people who were 
currently in receipt of council tax benefit were underrepresented. To try and 
increase the number of responses from this group we wrote to every working 
age recipient of CTB encouraging them to take part. 

 

There were 170 responses to the consultation and several hundred comments 
made. The results from the consultation are attached as Appendix A to the 
Council Report of 16th January and the comments as Appendix B. 

In summary the majority of respondents were in favour of all the principles 
and proposals, with a smaller majority being in favour of the doubling on non-
dependant deductions and the reduction of the capital limit to £6,000.   

 

Page 152



. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

What does all the information gathered tell you about the 

policy? 

I.e.  does the policy miss opportunities to advance equality and foster good 
relations? 

The majority of respondents to the consultation were in agreement 

with the proposed changes. The policy attempts to fill part of the 
funding gap, whilst at the same time protecting the most vulnerable eg 

by retaining disability premiums within the scheme. 

 

Based on your evidence and engagement is there a need to 

balance conflicting views and how will you do this? 

You will need to find an appropriate balance for these groups and the policy in 
question. 

Due to the government protecting pensioners (ie those who have attained the 
age whereby they can claim Pension Credit), the 10% cut in funding has to fall 
on those of working age ie those who have not reached the age where they can 
claim Pension Credit.  

 

 

Is there a need to counter resentment or address inaccurate 

perceptions, if so what will you do? 

This is more likely to arise in regard to policies that justifiably benefit certain 
groups over others and so give the impression of ‘favourable treatment’. 

There may be the feeling from working age claimants that they are being 

singled out for cuts in support. However, there is nothing the council can 

do about this, as the government has prescribed that pensioners are to be 

protected from any cuts. To achieve this, the government has set the 

rules on how claims from pensioners are to be dealt with.  

 

Findings of your analysis 

Having gathered in all the evidence and considered the potential or actual effect 

Page 153



of the policy on equality, you should now be in a position to make an informed 
judgement about what should be done with the policy.  There are four main 
steps to take:   

1. No major change – the policy is robust and evidence shows no potential for 
discrimination and all opportunities to advice equality and foster good relations 
between groups has been taken;  

2. Adjust the policy - some steps need to be taken to remove barriers in the 
policy or to better advance equality;  

3. Continue the policy – you will adopt the policy despite any adverse effects or 
missed opportunities because you are satisfied that it does not unlawfully 
discriminate – you will need to document what the justification is for continuing 
the policy, and how you reached this decision;  

4. Stop and remove the policy – there are adverse effects that are not justified 
and cannot be reduced.   

Irrespective of the step you recommend you are required to provide 
documentation in support of your decision and the reasons why you 
made it together with all supporting equality information used. 

Please type ‘recommended course of action’ against the desired step below. 

No major change  

Adjust the policy This is the recommended scheme. 

Continue the policy  

Stop and remove the policy  

 

Proposed action plan in regard to policy implementation 

Quality checking:  

What was the outcome 

of the Corporate 

Equality and Fairness 

Planning Group?   

 

How will you 

implement any 

recommendations the 

group made? 

The scheme has to be adopted by the Council by 
31 January 2013. 

Any recommendations made after this date will be 
considered during the review stage. 

How will the policy be 

monitored once 

implemented, and who 

will do this? 

Consider how you will 
determine whether or not 

The Council Tax collection rate (Although other 
economic factors will affect this). 

Numbers of reminders, final notices and summons 
issued (although other economic factors will affect 
this). 

Page 154



the policy is having its 
desired effects i.e. what 
type of information is 
needed and how often will it 
be gathered? 

Number of successful appeals. 

Spent against budget will be monitored monthly 

Who will analyse the 

monitoring at its 
review stages?  

Senior Head of Community 

Revenues and Benefits Manager 

What could trigger an 

early revision? 

The scheme cannot be changed mid-year. If the 
council wishes to change the scheme for 2014/15 
it will have to go out to consultation. 

How will you involve 

key service 

users/other parties in 

the review process? 

Through liaison meetings with: 

CAB 

Housing 

Brighton Housing Trust 

 

How will you publish 
the results of any 

reviews? 

 

 

For completion by the Equality and Fairness Steering Group: 

Results of group discussion 

and recommended course of 

action: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
Meeting: 
 

Council 

Date: 
 

Wednesday 20 November 2013 

Subject: 
 

Eastbourne Community Safety Plan 

Report of: Councillor Margaret Bannister on behalf of the Cabinet 
 

 
The Council is asked to consider the minute and resolution of the Cabinet meeting 
held on 23 October 2013 as set out below. 
 
Further copies of the report to Cabinet are available on request – please see end of 
this report.  A copy may be seen on the Council’s website by following the link 
below: 
http://democracy.eastbourne.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=899&V
er=4 
 

 
The Council is recommended to:- 
 
Approve the updated Plan, together with continued delegated 
implementation authority to Senior Head of Community. 
 

 
42 * Eastbourne Community Safety Plan 

 
42.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Community inviting 
consideration of the achievements and future risks and opportunities to 
performance in relation to the 2011/14 Community Safety Plan.  Bob Gough, 
Eastbourne Crime Reduction Officer and Chief Inspector Steve Biglands, District 
Police Commander, were invited to address the Cabinet.   
 
42.2 Cabinet had previously endorsed the successful performance of the 
Eastbourne Community Safety Partnership.  In 2005/2006 Eastbourne was subject 
to around 11,000 crimes.  For the performance year 2010/2011 this had dropped 
to approximately 7,500 crimes.  For the current rolling year up to the end of June 
2013, this had reduced to around 6,000 crimes, a further reduction of 9% 
compared with the same period last year.  A copy of the 3-year plan (2011/14) 
and final year refresh (2013/14) along with the 2013/14 action plan were 
appended to the report. 
 
42.3 Concerns were raised at the possibility that the Partnership’s budget could be 
reduced in future and that this could impact on performance in 2014/15. 
 
42.4 * Resolved (Budget and Policy Framework): (1) That Cabinet notes the 
CSP’s achievements and future risks/opportunities to performance and endorses 

Agenda Item 9a

Page 157



  

the updated 2011/2014 Community Safety Plan with continued delegated 
implementation authority to Senior Head of Community. 
 
(2) That full Council be asked to approve the updated Plan. 
 
 

 
For a copy of the report please contact Local Democracy at 1 Grove Road, 
Eastbourne, BN21 4TW.  Tel. (01323) 415022 or 415021. 
E-mail:  localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 
For further information please contact:   
Bob Gough, Eastbourne Crime Reduction Officer, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 
4TW  Tel: (01323) 415346.  E-mail:  bob.gough@eastbourne.gov.uk. 
 

(der\P:\council\13.11.20\community safety plan) 

Page 158



 

 

 

 
Meeting: 
 

Council 

Date: 
 

Wednesday 20 November 2013 

Subject: 
 

Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan 

Report of: Councillor Steve Wallis on behalf of the Cabinet 
 

 
The Council is asked to consider the minute and resolution of the Cabinet meeting 
held on 23 October 2013 as set out below. 
 
Further copies of the report to Cabinet are available on request – please see end of 
this report.  A copy may be seen on the Council’s website by following the link 
below: 
http://democracy.eastbourne.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=899&V
er=4 
 
Please note also that the Planning Committee, at their meeting on 1 October 2013 
(minute 44) agreed that the recommendations to be put before the Cabinet (and 
subsequently approved by the Cabinet) should be formally adopted. 
 

 
The Council is recommended:- 
 
(1) To approve for adoption the Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan along 
with the revised Policies Map. 
 
(2) That any minor or technical adjustments found necessary in the Town 
Centre Local Plan are delegated to the Senior Head of Development in 
consultation with the Cabinet portfolio holder. 
 

 
43. * Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan 

 
43.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Development.  The 
Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan (TCLP) had been shaped over the last 4 years 
by close consultation with the community and stakeholders.  The Local Plan set out 
a strategy and proposals for the future development and regeneration of the Town 
Centre up to 2027. 
 
43.2 The TCLP had been prepared in accordance with the relevant government 
regulations and had been submitted to the government on 31 January 2012.  
Following some concerns the Inspector had with the content of the submitted Plan, 
the Council made changes to strengthen the policy base of the document, to 
ensure it demonstrated how and when Town Centre proposals would be delivered.  
These modifications to the TCLP were approved by Cabinet on 6 February 2013 and 

Agenda Item 9b

Page 159



 

consulted on between 22 February and 5 April 2013.   
 
43.3 The Examination in Public for the TCLP took place on 16/17 May 2013 and the 
focus of the examination sessions included discussions on the following key issues: 

Matter 4: Quantum and Type of Development  
Matter 5: Development Opportunity Sites – General Matters 
Matter 6: Development Opportunity Sites – Site Specific Matters 
Matter 7: Public Realm Projects/Initiatives 

 
43.4 During the hearing sessions, the Planning Inspector sought additional 
information and clarification from the Council on a number of matters.  The Council 
was invited to put forward suggested amendments to address or clarify these 
issues.  The Council published a list of proposed Main Modifications to the TCLP and 
stakeholders and the local community were invited to make representations on the 
‘soundness’ of these proposed Main Modifications between 14 June and 26 July 
2013. Seven representations were received and these had been forwarded to the 
Inspector along with the Council’s response (which had been formulated in liaison 
with the Local Plan Steering Group).   
 
43.5 The Final Inspector’s Report, together with the Inspector's Appendix of 
proposed Main Modifications was received on 11 September 2013 and had been 
made available for public to view in person and on the Council’s website. 
 
43.6 The Inspector’s report had concluded that the TCLP provided an appropriate 
basis for the planning of the Town Centre over the next 15 years providing a 
number of modifications are made to the Plan. Most of the modifications to address 
this were proposed by the Council, and the Inspector recommended their inclusion 
after full consideration of the representations from other parties on these issues. 
 
43.7 The modifications were summarised as follows:  

• Amend references to planning for housing and office space to ensure 
consistency with the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan (adopted February 
2013). 

• Make a range of changes to the development opportunity sites to clarify 
their status as site allocations, set out a clear programme and strategy for 
delivery and demonstrate that project planning has commenced. 

• Make changes to ensure that the public realm projects, including the arts 
trail, are positively planned and deliverable. 

• Clarify the methodology and timing for taking forward the potential areas of 
change. 

• Update development management policies to take account of recent 
developments and strategies, especially the cycling strategy. 

• Re-draft the building heights/ tall buildings policy to ensure that it is justified 
and coherent. 

• Re-draft the implementation and monitoring section to ensure that it is 
effective and supports delivery of the Plan.  

 
43.8 After adoption, the Local Plan policies would be material considerations in the 
determination of planning applications for development in the Town Centre, along 
with the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan and the saved policies from the 
Eastbourne Borough Plan (2003).  
 

Page 160



 

43.9 The TCLP would also be a guide for developers and the community to show 
where and how the Town Centre would grow and develop in the future. Its main 
vision was that by 2027, ‘Eastbourne Town Centre would be a place that attracted 
more shoppers, workers, residents and visitors to spend more time enjoying a 
vibrant and varied offer and mix of uses in a well connected series of attractive 
streets and public spaces.  Increasing investment in the town would bring wide-
ranging benefits and would allow Eastbourne to respond positively to climate 
change. 
 
43.10 * Resolved (Budget and Policy Framework): (1) That full Council be 
recommended to approve for adoption the Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan 
along with the revised Policies Map. 
 
(2) That any minor or technical adjustments found necessary in the Town Centre 
Local Plan are delegated to the Senior Head of Development in consultation with 
the Cabinet portfolio holder. 
 

 
For a copy of the report please contact Local Democracy at 1 Grove Road, 
Eastbourne, BN21 4TW.  Tel. (01323) 415022 or 415021. 
E-mail:  localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 
For further information please contact:  Lisa Rawlinson, Senior Specialist Advisor,  
1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW   Tel: (01323) 415250  
E-mail: lisa.rawlinson@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

(der\P:\council\13.11.20\town centre local plan) 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
Meeting: 
 

Council 

Date: 
 

Wednesday 20 November 2013 

Subject: 
 

Information Technology Provision for Elected Members 

Report of: Councillor Troy Tester on behalf of the Cabinet 
 

 
The Council is asked to consider the minute and resolution of the Cabinet meeting 
held on 23 October 2013 as set out below. 
 
Further copies of the report to Cabinet are available on request – please see end of 
this report.  A copy may be seen on the Council’s website by following the link 
below: 
http://democracy.eastbourne.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=899&V
er=4 
 

 
The Council is recommended to:- 
 
(1) Adopt the new options for councillors IT provision as detailed in the 
report to Cabinet. 
 
(2) Continue the IT allowance scheme for all councillors to contribute 
towards broadband and printing costs. 
 
(3) Adopt of the new Protocol for Councillors in an Agile Working 
environment and associated policy changes. 
 

 
45 * Information Technology Provision for Elected Members 

45.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Infrastructure following 
detailed work undertaken to examine the future IT requirements of Councillors in 
the light of the Council’s move to agile and other new working methods.  
Councillors had participated in a workshop event and a group of councillors were 
trialling the use of tablet devices.  A new committee management system had 
recently been implemented and part of this work had also involved exploring how 
committee documents could be delivered electronically to the tablet devices via an 
app.  
 
45.2 Councillors and officers needed access regularly to confidential information, 
i.e. any information that was not in the public domain, to enable them to fulfil their 
role.  Government security requirements, mandated by the Public Services 
Network (PSN) Code of Connection, as well as data protection legislation, required 
the Council to ensure that such data and information was properly secured in 
accordance with a detailed set of standards.   

Agenda Item 9c

Page 163



 

 
45.3 The current IT options available to councillors were approved by Council in 
July 2007.  Option 1 involved councillors providing their own IT equipment.  Option 
2 involved the council delivering a full solution including laptop and broadband.  
Currently 21 councillors had opted for Option 1 and six for Option 2. 
 
45.4 As a result of the security requirements mentioned above, the Council was 
required to withdraw Option 1.  All councillors would need to be provided with 
council equipment to ensure that the Council maintained its PSN accreditation.  In 
this context, the proposed new options were as follows: 

• Option 1 – a portable tablet solution enabling secure mobile access to email, 
council documents and committee papers.  

• Option 2 – a standard council laptop, of the same model issued to council 
staff with a flexible work style.  

 
45.5 As part of these changes it would be necessary to temporarily withdraw the 
use of Outlook Web Access, which currently enabled councillors to access their 
council email from non-council equipment, such as home computers, smartphones 
and personal tablets.  It was hoped to reinstate Outlook Web Access from non-
council devices following an upgrade of the email server and the installation of 
some additional security in 2014. 
 
45.6 The options approved in 2007 made provision for an IT allowance to be given 
to councillors who selected Option 1.  Councillors who selected Option 2 did not 
receive an allowance. Consideration was given to the impact of the new options on 
the IT allowance for members.  Much had changed since the 2007 report.  Most 
homes now had broadband provision, wi-fi was widely available and many people 
now used tablet computers instead of laptops and e-book readers or tablets 
instead of reading hard copy books and newspapers.  The council’s own agile 
working programme had radically reduced the use of paper across the organisation 
and the intention was that councillors would rely less on paper over time. 
 
45.7 It was therefore proposed that, irrespective of the option selected, the council 
would not provide broadband or printing facilities at councillors’ homes.  Since 
most councillors had selected to use their own broadband anyway, the impact of 
this would be limited.  In recognition of the fact that councillors would be using 
their own broadband and, if required, printing facilities, it was proposed to retain 
the IT allowance at the existing level for all councillors, irrespective of which option 
they chose.  Councillors who currently did not claim the IT allowance would in 
future receive it, and this cost could be met from within existing budgets. 
 
45.8 As with all members of staff, councillors would be required to adhere to the 
council’s IT Acceptable Use Policy (AUP).  Under the Agile Working Programme an 
‘Agile Ways of Working’ handbook was developed to support staff in the transition 
to new ways of working.  A similar guide had been developed, called ‘Guidance for 
Councillors in an Agile Working Environment’. 
 
45.9 The one-off costs of implementing the new policy were built into the Agile 
Working Phase 2 budget and would be met from existing capital funding.  The 
annual costs would be met from existing revenue budgets. 
 
45.10 * Resolved: That full Council be recommended to: 

Page 164



 

(a) Adopt the new options for councillors IT provision as detailed in the report. 
(b) Continue the IT allowance scheme for all councillors to contribute towards 
broadband and printing costs. 
(c) Adopt of the new Protocol for Councillors in an Agile Working environment and 
associated policy changes. 
 
Note:  The Monitoring Officer reported that dispensations had been granted to all 
Councillors on 9 October 2013 to enable them to participate in discussions and in 
voting on all matters relating to the above minute. 
 

 
For a copy of the report please contact Local Democracy at 1 Grove Road, 
Eastbourne, BN21 4TW.  Tel. (01323) 415022 or 415021. 
E-mail:  localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 
For further information please contact:   
Henry Branson, Senior Head of Infrastructure, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 
4TW  Tel: (01323) 415155    E-mail: henry.branson@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

(der\P:\council\13.11.20\IT for Members) 

Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
Meeting: 
 

Council 

Date: 
 

Wednesday 20 November 2013 

Subject: 
 

Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 -2019 and 
Cumulative Impact Policy. Licensing Act 2003 
 

Report of: Councillor Steve Wallis on behalf of the Cabinet 
 

 
The Council is asked to consider the minute and resolution of the Cabinet meeting 
held on 23 October 2013 as set out below. 
 
Further copies of the report to Cabinet are available on request – please see end of 
this report.  A copy may be seen on the Council’s website by following the link 
below: 
http://democracy.eastbourne.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=899&V
er=4 
 
In addition, for information, the extract from the minutes of the Licensing Act 
Committee, at their meeting on 7 October 2013 dealing with this matter and 
including that Committee’s supportive comments, is also set out below. 
 
 
The Council is recommended to:- 
 
Approve the draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-2019 as amended. 
 

 
46. * Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 -2019 and 

Cumulative Impact Policy. Licensing Act 2003 

46.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Specialist Adviser.  The Council 
was required to consult, review and publish its Statement of Licensing Policy at 
regular intervals. The purpose of the Statement was to promote the Licensing 
Objectives.  It set out the general approach taken by the Authority when 
considering and determining applications under the Licensing Act 2003. The 
Licensing Objectives were: 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 
• Public safety. 
• The prevention of public nuisance. 
• The protection of children from harm. 

The scope of a Licensing Policy Statement covers the following: 
• Retail sales of alcohol. 
• The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club or to the order of a member 

of the club. 
• The provision of regulated entertainment. 
• The provision of late night refreshment. 

Agenda Item 9d

Page 167



 

 
46.2 Public consultation of the draft Statement took place for 12 weeks between 
the 27 June and 19 September 2013.  A range of organisations and individuals 
were directly consulted, including ‘Responsible Authorities’, ward councillors, all 
premises licence and club premises certificate holders in the borough, 
neighbourhood panels and residents groups, hospitality and trade associations 
and various forums of representative groups.  The draft was also posted on the 
Council’s website and notices placed at council offices and the Central Library.  A 
copy of the draft formed appendix 1 to the report.  Responses were received from 
the Town Centre Manager (wishing to see a robust cumulative impact policy to 
meet the challenge of an increasing number of alcohol licensing applications in 
the town centre) and the Chair of the Town Centre Neighbourhood Panel (in full 
support of the policy) (appendix 2 to the report).  
 
46.3 The Council’s Licensing Act Committee had considered and endorsed the 
draft policy at their meeting on 7 October 2013.  Subject to full Council approval 
on the 20 November 2013, the updated policy would come into effect on 1 
January 2014. 
 
46.4 It was reported verbally that following publication of the report it had been 
noticed that point 3.2 on page 65 of the Draft Licensing Act policy Statement 
(part of the cumulative impact policy) could be perceived as contradictory.  It was 
suggested that this text should be removed prior to ratification by full Council to 
remove any notion of contradiction. 
 
46.5 * Resolved (Budget and Policy Framework):  (1) That the response to 
the consultation on the draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 – 2019 and the 
proposed timetable leading up to the policy coming into force on 1st January 2014 
be noted. 
 
(2) That point 3.2 on page 65 of the policy statement be deleted as this could be 
perceived as contradictory. 
 
(3) That full Council be recommended to approve the draft Statement of Licensing 
Policy 2014-2019, as amended. 
 
 
 
Extract from the minutes of the Licensing Act Committee held on 7 October 
2013: 
 
3 Council's Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-2019 and Cumulative 

Impact Policy. Licensing Act 2003, setting out the Council's 
approach for the next 5 years. 
 

The Committee considered the report of the Senior Specialist Advisor regarding the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-2019, including a revised Cumulative 
Impact Policy 2014-2019. 
 
As a Licensing Authority, in accordance with Schedule 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, 
Eastbourne Borough Council must prepare, consult and publish its Statement of 
Licensing Policy every five years.  

Page 168



 

 
The Statement purpose was to promote the four licensing objectives and provided 
guidance to Local Authorities when considering and determining applications under 
the Licensing Act 2003. It also assisted applicants, Responsible Authorities and all 
those making representations (objections) in conjunction with the decision making 
process.  
 
The scope of the Statement covered the retail sale of alcohol, the supply of alcohol 
by or on behalf of a Club or to the order of a member of the Club, the provision of 
regulated entertainment and the provision of late night refreshment. 
 
A public consultation of the Draft Statement of Licensing Policy took place between 
the 27th June 2013 and the 19th September 2013, in accordance with the 
requirements of a 12 week consultation. 
 
A range of organisations and individuals, including Ward Councillors were directly 
consulted about the proposals. To date two responses had been received from the 
Town Centre Manager and the Town Centre Management Panel Chair, details of 
which were appended to the report. 
 
The revised Cumulative Impact Policy, appended to the Policy Statement included 
a statement in support of the Cumulative Impact Zone by the Eastbourne 
Community Safety Partnership.  
 
The Committee noted the implementation timetable for the Policy. Following 
tonight’s meeting; the Policy would seek the comments of the Cabinet, and then 
seek the approval of the Full Council before being published in November 2013. 
 
The Committee discussed the Licensing Act Sub Committee process, notably where 
Sussex Police had initially made a representation objecting to an application before 
withdrawing prior or at the meeting itself.   
 
The Senior Specialist Advisor outlined the process prior to a hearing. Following an 
objection by Sussex Police, a negotiating period would occur where it would be up 
to the applicant to satisfy concerns raised by Sussex Police and this could be done 
by attaching certain conditions on the licence. If an agreement was made prior to a 
meeting, the representations are withdrawn and there would no longer be a 
requirement for a meeting to take place and the application would be approved.  
 
The Committee then discussed the feedback submitted by the Town Centre 
Manager which expressed a concern about the robustness of the cumulative impact 
policy on alcohol sales for the town centre in determining future applications. The 
Senior Specialist Advisor made reference to the recent Tesco, 68 Grove Road 
application that had been approved after the applicant had addressed the concerns 
raised by Sussex Police by agreeing to add various conditions to the licence and 
successfully rebutted the presumption against granting the application arising from 
the Council’s Cumulative Impact Policy. The Senior Specialist Advisor continued 
that the conditions were added to the licence with the aim of deterring street 
drinkers. 
 
It was noted that each application was different and would be judged on its own 
merits. While the Cumulative Impact Policy created a rebuttable presumption when 

Page 169



 

valid representation was made, an applicant could still provide evidence in their 
operating schedule or conditions to demonstrate that there would be no negative 
cumulative impact on the area. 
 
The Committee then made reference to the effect of the Cumulative Impact Policy 
and the performance figures for crime related incidents inside the Cumulative 
Impact Zone (CIZ). Although the number of reported crimes had fallen, the 
proportion of offences inside the CIZ had risen to 31%. Despite this, it was 
acknowledged that without the Policy, the statistics could potentially be worse and 
with a Policy in place, it allows the authority to intervene where necessary on 
applications.  
 
The Senior Specialist Advisor added that there had been a decrease in vertical 
drinking establishments and most premises licence were attached to Café style 
establishments. This is consistent with the aims of the Cumulative Impact Policy. 
 
It was requested that on the next follow up for the Licensing Policy, a breakdown 
of whether there had been an increase or decrease of drinking establishments in 
the town could be included. 
 
RESOLVED: (1) That the responses to the consultation on the Draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy 2014-2019 and the proposed timetable leading up to the policy 
coming into force on 1st January 2014 be noted. 
 
(2) That any further revisions to the draft Policy be delegated to the Senior Head 
of Infrastructure, in consultation with the Chair of the Licensing Act Committee and 
the relevant Cabinet holder, prior to and following consideration by Cabinet and up 
to final consideration and approval by Full Council. 
 
 
 
 
For a copy of the report please contact Local Democracy at 1 Grove Road, 
Eastbourne, BN21 4TW.  Tel. (01323) 415022 or 415021. 
E-mail:  localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 
For further information please contact:   
Jay Virgo, Senior Specialist Advisor, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW  
Tel: (01323) 415933   E-mail: jay.virgo@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

(der\P:\council\13.11.20\Licensing) 

Page 170



 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Council 

Date: 
 

Wednesday 20 November 2013 

Subject: 
 

Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline – Investment and 
Change of Governance 
 

Report of: Councillor David Tutt on behalf of the Cabinet 
 

 
The Council is asked to note the open summary minute of the Cabinet and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings meeting held on 23 October and 6 November respectively 
2013 as set out below.   
 
A separate report by the Chief Finance Officer setting out those matters which can 
be made public at this time accompanies this report. 
 

 
The Council is recommended:- 
 
To support the planned development proposal for the business as set out 
in the confidential (private) part of the agenda. 
 
 

 
Extract from the minutes of the Cabinet held on 23 October 2013: 
 
52 Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline – Investment and change of 

governance (Budget and Policy Framework).   

 
Cabinet recommended full Council to approve planned development proposals for 
the company, including governance, funding and delegation arrangements.  
Scrutiny Committee was also asked to consider this matter at special meeting on 6 
November.  The proposals were considered to provide for the future success of the 
company.  
 
Exempt information reasons: 3- Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
and 4 - information relating to any consultations or negotiations in connection with 
any labour relations matter. 
 
 
Extract from the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee held on 6 
November 2013: 
 
13 Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline - Investment and Change of 

Governance [BPF] 

Agenda Item 9e

Page 171



 

 
The committee considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer providing planned 
development proposals for the company, including governance, funding and 
delegation arrangements.   
 
Exempt information reasons: 3 - information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
and 4 - information relating to any consultations or negotiations in connection with 
any labour relations matter. 
 

 
 
For further information please contact:   
Alan Osborne, Chief Finance Officer, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW.  Tel: 
(01323) 415149   E-mail: alan.osborne@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

(der\P:\council\13.11.20\WEL open) 

 

Page 172



Page 1 of 3 

 

Body: Council 
 

Date: 20th November 2013 
 

Subject: Potential Investment in Local Company 
 

Report Of: Chief Finance Officer 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose To outline the proposal to invest in a local business and the 
reasons for doing so. 
 

Recommendation(s): That Council support the planned development proposal for 
the business as set out in the confidential part of the 
agenda. 
 

Contact: Alan Osborne, Chief Finance Officer, Telephone 01323 
415149 or internally on extension 5149. 
Email address: alan.osborne@eastbourne.gov.uk 

  

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 As reported to Cabinet on 23rd October 2013, an opportunity has arisen to 

invest in a joint venture linked to a management buy-out of Wealden and 
Eastbourne Lifeline (WEL). The matter was also considered at a special 
meeting of Scrutiny Committee on 6th November 2013 and the minutes of 
that meeting are included elsewhere on this agenda. Due to the 
commercially sensitive nature of the information, the details of the 
investment are required to be considered under confidential cover. 
 

1.2 This report seeks to update members on the progress of discussions that 
have shaped the terms of the investment opportunity that has now arisen. It 
also sets out the options available to Council and seeks a decision on 
whether to invest in the proposed New Company taking into account the 
balance of risk involved in the investment. 
 

2.0 Analysis 
 

2.1 Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline ("WEL") was established in 2005, following 
extensive consultation with stakeholders and a rigorous Best Value review 
process. The Best Value Review identified that Wealden Lifeline (as it then 
was) would require increased investment and income to remain viable, 
competitive and to be able to take advantage of future opportunities for 
growth and diversification. A joint venture was identified as a possible way 
forward and in July 2004 a joint working party between the Council and 
Wealden District Council ("WDC") recommended the merger of a combined 
service through the creation of a not for profit company limited by 
guarantee. Accordingly, WEL was formed in October 2005 with the Council 

Page 173



Page 2 of 3 

and WDC each having 24% of the voting rights.  The remaining voting rights 
are held by independent directors. 
 

2.2 Although WEL has grown significantly over that period, the Board consider 
that the current structure and funding arrangements need to change. This is 
consistent with the original 2005 decision which envisaged that the company 
would operate for an initial period of five years. During that time the nature 
of public sector commissioning and the market in which WEL operates have 
changed significantly. Consequently the Board undertook an options 
appraisal in 2010. Taking into account all of the options it decided to support 
a management buy-out backed by further investment. 
 

2.3 Following the options appraisal, the Board and Councils assessed the nature 
and scale of investment required. As a result of this work it is proposed that 
the Council become the major investor in a new company which will develop 
and expand WEL in the future. This is due to a number of factors including: 
 

• Supporting the future growth of the business in a competitive market 
• Retaining a significant local employer in Eastbourne 
• The ability to play a role in the future of a company providing high 

quality services to the public sector 
• Resolving a long standing pensions liability currently held by the 

Council 
• Taking into account the risks, an opportunity to make a financial 

return for the Council. 
 

2.4 There are also risks associated with any decision. Should the Council not 
proceed with the investment then the transaction will not proceed, the 
pensions liability will not be resolved and the company may find it difficult to 
raise finance for future investment. The two principal risks of proceeding 
with the investment are the ability to grow in line with the company’s 
strategy and the retention of existing contracts. 
 

3 Investment Summary 
 

3.1 The proposed structure is that a new company, limited by shares, ("Newco") 
will be the subject to the investment.  The Council would initially subscribe 
for 70.9% of the share capital and may agree to make further investments 
to enable the company to grow. The remaining shares will be taken by the 
MBO Team at completion, with the potential in due course for a further issue 
of up to 5% of the issued share capital to be issued to other shareholders if 
agreed by the parties in the future. 
 

3.2 The Council’s interests will be secured by retaining two representatives on 
the Board of the company. These representatives will be mandated by the 
Council to make decisions regarding the company. The Council’s 
shareholding will entitle it to 49.9% of the voting rights with its interests 
protected by additional reserved matters relating to significant decisions. 
Through this combination of representation and reserved matters it is 
considered that the Councils interests will be secured. 
 

3.3 It is proposed that the Council’s initial nomination to the Board at the point 
of initial investment is the Chief Executive. It is also recommended that an 

Page 174



Page 3 of 3 

additional representative is sought at the earliest opportunity which should 
be subject to cross party support. 
 

3.0 Consultation 
 

3.1 Consultation requirements have been considered under the Council’s 
potential statutory obligations relating to Best Value, the Public Sector 
Equality Duty and Landlord and Tenant. With respect to Best Value a 
consultation notice was placed on the websites of both Eastbourne Borough 
Council and Wealden District Council. No significant feedback was received 
relating to this decision. 
 

4.0 Resource Implications 
 

4.1 Financial and staffing – as set out in the confidential section of the agenda 
 

5 Legal Implications 
 

5.1 Legal advice has been obtained and the Council has the ability to proceed 
with the proposal. 
 

5.0 Conclusion 
 

5.1 WEL has traded successfully since 2005 however the company’s strategy 
means that a change in governance is now required to enable the 
organisation to thrive in the future. Working with the MBO team will assist by 
protecting jobs in the local area and supporting a high quality service. 
Significantly the Council will also expect a return on investment. 
 
 

5.2 The above must be balanced against the risks of investing, principally the 
ability for the business to grow and retaining existing contracts. 
 

Alan Osborne 
Chief Finance Officer 
 

 
Background Papers: 
 
None 
 

 

Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Wednesday, 25 September 

2013 

at 6.00 pm 

 
 

 

 

 

Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Members: Councillor Ungar (Chairman) Councillors Mattock, Cooke, Ede (as 

substitute for Belsey), Heaps, Taylor and Tester 
 
(Apologies for absence were reported from Councillor Belsey and Councillor Harris) 
 
 

 
8 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2013 - Previously 

circulated  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2013 were submitted and 
approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct 
record. 
 

9 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by 
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of 
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct (please see 
note at end of agenda).  

 
None were received. 
 

10 Update - Members and Standards.  
 

The Committee considered the report of the Monitoring Officer in relation to 
Member Standards. 

The Monitoring Officer gave an update to the Committee on the one formal 
complaint regarding member conduct that was outstanding at the time of 
the last meeting. Following formal investigation, a decision was made by 
the Monitoring Officer not to take any further action and all parties were 
notified accordingly. 

The Monitoring Officer advised that no new formal complaints had been 
received during this quarter.  

Member training had been booked to take place in November 2013 to 
provide an update to members on Standards and related matters. This 
additional session had been arranged to focus on the relationship between 
the Code of Conduct for members in light of the Protocol for Member/Officer 
relations, as instructed by the Standards Panel, who indicated that the 
session would be relevant to all members. 

The Committee was informed that attendance figures for training would be 
reported at a later meeting, in accordance with the usual practice.  

RESOLVED: (1) That the information in relation to complaints against 
members either received or determined be noted. 

Agenda Item 11a

Page 177



2 

Audit and Governance 

Wednesday, 25 September 2013 

 

 

(2) That the information regarding member training related to Standards 
be noted.  
 

11 Update - The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and 
related legislation.  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Monitoring Officer regarding 
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and related legislation. 

At the previous meeting, members agreed that the Audit and Governance 
Committee would receive quarterly reports on the subject of the monitoring 
of covert surveillance conducted pursuant to RIPA.  

The Committee noted the quarterly returns, compiled for the period 1/6/13 
to 1/9/13, detailed in the report. The Monitoring Officer advised that the 
returns for the quarter were consistent with those of the previous years, 
indicating very infrequent recourse by this authority to the powers available 
to it under RIPA. 

At the previous meeting, the Monitoring Officer was also invited to report to 
the Committee regarding the outcome of the Officer of the Surveillance 
Commissioner’s inspection report, which was received on 24 June 2013. 

A thorough review was conducted on all aspects of the authority’s 
arrangements which considered Council policies, procedures and guidance 
materials in addition to interviewing officers at all levels. 

The inspection report, attached with a covering letter was included at 
Appendix 1 of the report. The covering letter noted with approval the 
‘wholesale change in approach’ which had characterised the authority’s 
arrangements with regard to the statutory regime in recent years. 

The Monitoring Officer noted that the Inspector had comprehended that the 
authority had chosen to take a robust approach to the use of the powers 
available to it, seeing it as an absolute last resort. This was reflected in the 
Council’s policies and procedures and had resulted in a lack of applications 
for authorised surveillance in the last three years. Although the Inspector 
had no substantive applications to examine for compliance, she clearly 
understood the Council’s chosen approach and noted with approval the 
safeguards put in place to ensure that covert surveillance outside the RIPA 
regime occurs only with rigorous regard to the appropriate safeguards. The 
Inspector noted the good practice that the authority had put in place in 
preparation for any future recourse to RIPA. The good practice included 
helpful guidance materials for officers, good training provisions, internal 
oversight mechanisms and good surveillance equipment management 
processes. Further details were contained in the report.  

The Inspector’s report had given the Council a clean bill of health, although 
clearly there was no room for complacency and all investigative scenarios 
must be considered on their individual merits with consideration given at all 
levels to the appropriate safeguards.  

The Committee expressed their thanks to officers for the hard work and 
diligence which had resulted in a positive inspection. 

RESOLVED: (1) The Committee noted that no applications were made by 
officers of this authority pursuant to the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 

Page 178



3 

Audit and Governance 

Wednesday, 25 September 2013 

 
Act to conduct covert surveillance during the quarter leading up to 1 
September 2013. 
 
(2) That the detailed review in June 2013 of the authority’s RIPA-related 
arrangements, which generated a favourable report, be noted. 
 

12 Internal Audit Report to 30th June 2013.  
 

The Committee considered the report of the Internal Audit Manager 
regarding a summary of the activities of Internal Audit for the first quarter 
of the financial year 2013/14. 

Audit work carried out to date against the audit plan for 2013/14 was set 
out in appendix A. The comments noted from the appendix included the 
number of days taken to carry out the annual audit for BDO, which related 
to the last financial year but was carried out in this year. The decision made 
by the Senior Head of Community, in discussion with Eastbourne Homes Ltd 
was also taken not to carry out a review of Void Management after an initial 
request and inclusion in the annual audit plan. 

A list of all audit reports issued in final from the 1st April to 30th June 2013 
and the level of assurance attained were detailed in the report. Those audit 
report that were given an assurance level of “Performing Inadequately” 
were Theatre Reconciliations (Annual 2012/13) and Information 
Governance – Records Management. 

The Committee was advised that the Head of Tourism was aware of the 
issues around Theatre Reconciliations, caused by a member of staff on long 
term sick leave and the taking on of the Catering Function. These issues 
would be tackled by the restructuring of Catering and consideration of other 
mitigating actions. 

The Internal Audit Manager continued that work had already begun on 
addressing the issues relating to Information Governance - Records 
Management and Civica were being approached to help build the successful 
delivery of the required records management outcomes into the next 
phase(s) of the Future Mode project. 

A list of all reports issued in final during the year, which were given an 
assurance level below “Performing Excellently” was set out in Appendix B, 
with any issues highlighted. 

A brief explanation for a number of outstanding high and medium priority 
recommendations from audits, reasons why they had not been 
implemented along with the month when the next follow up date was due 
were set out in appendix C. The Committee noted that the 
recommendations listed were outstanding at the time of the last follow up 
review. It was reported that no reviews had a high risk priority for this 
quarter. 

The Committee considered the list of frauds over £10k which was reported 
to the authority’s external auditors on a quarterly basis. The Committee 
noted that no frauds had been reported in the first quarter of the year. 
 
The General Manager, Eastbourne Theatres addressed the Committee on 
the topic of Theatres Reconciliations, which had been given a performing 
inadequately assurance level. 

Page 179



4 

Audit and Governance 

Wednesday, 25 September 2013 

 

 

He advised that all the issues noted that had been raised during this 
quarter had now been addressed and steps had been taken to ensure that a 
drop in performance would not occur again. The Committee were then 
given an overview of these steps which included the introduction of monthly 
reconciliations.  

The Committee was advised that the staff member that had been on long 
term sick leave had now returned and that the next performance quarter 
should see an improvement in performance.  

The Committee queried what would happen should a similar situation arise 
again with a staff member being absent for a sustained period of time. The 
General Manager, Eastbourne Theatres responded that Theatres 
Reconciliation had now been identified as a high priority following an 
assessment of all Theatres work and would be addressed much earlier than 
it had previously. To ensure work would be covered to the required level, 
written guidance had been produced to assist employees covering that work 
and employees were being developed to cross work and cover each other. 
This would allow for flexibility should illness occur amongst employees. 

The Senior Head of Tourism and Leisure also addressed the Committee and 
advised that additional member of staff had been employed to assist with 
catering. 

Following a question from the Committee, the General Manager, Eastbourne 
Theatres explained that the financial process had been streamlined and the 
majority was now done electronically. 

The Committee then asked about the issues noted for Information 
Governance – Records Management, notably the policies and guidance 
being in draft form. The Monitoring Officer advised the policy was close to 
be finalised and would be taken to a future Corporate Management Team. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

13 Annual Governance Report 2012/13.  
 

The Committee considered the report of the External Auditors BDO 
regarding the Annual Governance Report which detailed the key elements 
of the systems and processes of the Council’s governance arrangements. 

Mr Lloyd-Thomas was in attendance to present the report and respond to 
Members’ questions. The report was presented in accordance with the Audit 
Commission’s Code of Audit Practice which required BDO to communicate 
key findings of their audit of the accounts and use of resources prior to 
issuing an opinion on the accounting statements and value for money 
conclusion. 

Mr Lloyd-Thomas thanked the Chief Finance Officer and his team for their 
co-operation and assistance throughout the audit.  

The Committee were then given an overview of the key findings from the 
audit and a number of issues that had arisen although these had no 
material effect on the Council balances.  

A number of recommendations were made to improve the effectiveness of 
financial statements and internal controls operating over specific financial 
systems and further details were set out in the report.  

Page 180



5 

Audit and Governance 

Wednesday, 25 September 2013 

 
Mr Lloyd-Thomas confirmed that BDO were satisfied with the proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness, the Council 
had put in place. As a result an unqualified value for money conclusion 
would be issued. 

One of the unadjusted audit differences was the valuation of The Goffs that 
had been originally valued at £606,000 before being re-valued at £500,000. 
The Committee queried whether there were other assets that were in a 
similar position. Mr Lloyd-Thomas responded that he wasn’t aware of any. 

The Committee then discussed the valuation of land and buildings which the 
Council carries out every five years. BDO advised that there is an 
expectation that more frequent valuations occur, either as a desktop review 
or full valuation, in future years. When asked about the valuation of art, the 
Financial Services Manager advised that they were in discussions with the 
Executive Director of the Towner Art Gallery. The Committee was informed 
that the Towner didn’t have the resources to perform the valuations in-
house and it was impractical to value every five years, with art changing 
value all the time. It was aimed that a policy would be produced on art 
valuation that would be economically sensible and viable.  

Councillor Heaps suggested that the Towner pull its resources with other art 
galleries in the area. The Financial Services Manager responded that this 
was an option that would be worth investigating further. 

The Chief Finance Officer addressed the Committee thanking BDO for their 
report and advised that they would be taking onboard the recommendations 
suggested in the report.  

The Committee thanked the Chief Finance Officer, the Financial Services 
Manager and their teams for their significant work throughout the audit and 
expressed their thanks to BDO for their diligent report. 

RESOLVED: That the Annual Governance Statement for 2012/13 be 
approved and the Chairman be authorised to sign the letter of 
representation on behalf of the Committee. 
 

14 Statement of Accounts 2012/2013.  
 

The Financial Services Manager presented the annual accounts for 2012/13. 
It was reported that only minor presentational changes had been made to 
the draft accounts approved in June and a revised copy of the statement of 
accounts were appended to the report.  

BDO had indicated that an unqualified audit opinion on the Council’s 
accounting and group accounting statements would be issued before the 
statutory deadline of 30 September 2013. 

The Annual Governance report highlighted some areas of unadjusted 
differences, however these were below the level of materiality and no main 
changes to the main accounting statements were required. 

The process for the 2012/13 audit and statement of accounts presentation 
had represented another significant improvement to the previous years in 
terms of its accuracy and timeliness. 

RESOLVED: (1) That the action taken in respect of the non-trivial but not 
material errors identified by External Audit be agreed. 

(2) That the final audited accounts for 2012/13 be approved. 

Page 181



6 

Audit and Governance 

Wednesday, 25 September 2013 

 

 

(3) That delegated authority to the Chief Finance Officer to make minor 
amendments to the Statement of Accounts be approved. 
 

15 Risk Management.  
 

The Committee considered the report of the Internal Audit Manager 
regarding an update on progress in respect of the Strategic Risk Register.   

The Strategic Risk Register had been taken to Corporate Management Team 
on 20 August 2013 for the regularly quarterly review.  

There was one item raised, concerning risk SR_006. The first mitigating 
action listed for this risk was “Regularly reviewed and tested Business 
Continuity Plans”. It was discussed that this control was currently not in 
place. 

As a result of this, it was agreed that the current impact score should be 
raised from 3 (significant) to 4 (major). The level of alert would remain at 
Amber. 

The Corporate Management Team commented that as the authority was 
currently in a time of transition, it would not be expected that the testing of 
Business Continuity Plans would be carried out regularly as expected. 

The updated register was appended to the report. 

RESOLVED: That the amended Strategic Risk Register as appended to the 
report be approved. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 6.55 pm 
 
 Councillor Ungar (Chairman) 
  
 

Page 182



1 

 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

at 6.00 pm 
 

 
 

 

 

Planning Committee 
Present:- 
Members: Councillor Ungar (Chairman) Councillors Coles (as substitute  for 

Hearn) Jenkins, Miah, Murdoch (as substitute for Liddiard) Murray, 
Stanley (as substitute for Harris) and Taylor 

 
(Apologies for absence were reported from Councillors Liddiard, Harris and Hearn ) 
 
 

 
32 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2013.  Previously 

circulated.  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2013 were submitted 
and approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct 
record. 

33 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by 
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of 
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct (please see 
note at end of agenda).  

 

There were none. 
 

34 34 Dillingburgh Road.  Application ID 130500 (FP)  
 

130500 (FP) - Land to the rear of 34 Dillingburgh Road - Erection of 
two-storey detached dwelling house with garage, crossover and dropped 
curb – OLD TOWN.  Nine letters of objection had been received. 
 
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of Specialist Advisor – Arboriculture, Senior Transport 
Development Control Officer at East Sussex County Council and the Senior 
Planning and Policy Officer at Eastbourne Borough Council were detailed 
within the report. 

NB: Councillor Taylor was no longer present for this item. 

RESOLVED: (By 6 votes with 1 abstention) That permission be refused 
on the grounds that (1) That the proposed dwelling would be out of keeping 
with the established building pattern and that of the surrounding area and 
would comprise an alien and intrusive form of development, in an area 
characterised by semi-detached dwelling houses with deep rear gardens.  
As such the proposal would conflict with policies B2, C4 and D10A of the 
Core Strategy Local Plan, Saved Policy UHT1 of the Eastbourne Borough 
Plan and The National Planning Policy Framework. 

Agenda Item 11b

Page 183



2 

Planning 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

 

 

(2) That the proposal would adversely affect the amenities of the 
occupiers of adjacent properties by reason of loss of privacy and 
overlooking or rear gardens. The proposal would therefore be contrary to 
B2 of the Core Strategy Local Plan and Saved Policy HO20 of the 
Eastbourne Borough Plan. 
 
 

35 42 Wannock Road.  Application ID 130516 (PPP)  
 

130516 (PPP), 42 Wannock Road, Proposed Conversion and Extension 
of an Existing Single Storey StorageBuilding into a 1 Bedroom, 2 Storey 
Dwellinghouse – Devonshire.  Two objections had been received. 
 
The observations of Southern Water, Fire Brigade,Seeboard Energy, 
Building Control Manager, Environment Agency, County Archaeologist, Local 
Highway Manager, South East Water and Southern Gas Networks were 
detailed within the report. 
 
NB: Councillor Taylor was no longer present for this item. 
 
RESOLVED: (By 6 votes to 1) That permission be granted subject to the  
satisfactory completion of a Unilateral Undertaking in relation to an 
affordable housing contribution and the following conditions: 1) Time for 
commencement 2) Approved drawings 3) Access shown on the submitted 
plan to be stopped up and the kerb and footway reinstated 4) In 
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment 
 

36 72 Sancroft Road.  Application ID 130404 (PPP)  
 

130404 (PPP),  72 Sancroft Road - Erection of new dwelling adjacent to 
72 - a replica version of 72 Sancroft Road with matching materials – OLD 
TOWN.  22 letters of objection had been received.  Four further letters of 
objection had been received. 
 
The Council’s Arboriculturalist raised no objection subject to conditions 
requiring tree protection and landscaping. 
 
Paul Honeyford, objector, addressed the committee stating that the 
proposals were contrary to Council Policy and would increase the driving 
dangers experienced on this road during the winter months. 
 
Martin Catterick, objector, addressed the committtee reiterating the 
previous speakers comments and stating that it would be an 
overdevleopment of the site with narrow parking entrace and no where for 
plant storage during any proposed build. 
 
Riad Thomas, applicant, addressed the committee in reposnse stating that 
the site was not a greenfield site, the buidling had been designed to be a 
copy of the surrounding properties and the removal of a parking space 
would increase the viewing aspects for drivers approaching the junction. 
 
NB: Councillor Taylor was no longer present for this item. 

 

Page 184



3 

Planning 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

 
RESOLVED:  (Unanimous) That permission be refused on the grounds 
that 1) The proposed development is considered unacceptable by virtue of 
its excessive footprint and massing which would dominate this constrained 
corner site, requiring significant alterations to ground levels to facilitate the 
development. As such, it is considered that the proposal would be 
inappropriate, unsympathetic and would fail to harmonise with the 
character, appearance and development pattern of the local area contrary 
to Policies UHT1, UHT4 and HO6 of the Eastbourne Local Plan and Policies 
B1 and B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 2) The proposed development would significantly harm 
surrounding visual and environmental amenity of existing and future 
residents by virtue of its inappropriate and obtrusive siting resulting in the 
potential loss of existing trees, bushes and planting and the open nature of 
the garden on this sweeping corner on a prominent junction. As such, the 
proposal would be contrary to Policies H06 and HO20 of the Eastbourne 
Local Plan and Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy.3) The proposed 
development is considered unacceptable by virtue of its failure to provide 
sufficient off-street parking spaces for the proposed and existing houses 
which is likely to add to increased overnight on-street parking stress in the 
local area and highway safety concerns on a busy junction. As such, the 
proposal would be contrary to Policy TR11 of the Eastbourne Borough Local 
Plan and East Sussex County Council parking standards SPG. 4) It has not 
been demonstrated that the proposed development would address 
principles of sustainable development or meet the minimum requirement of 
Code Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. As such, it is considered 
that the proposal is unacceptable and fails to accord with Policy D1 of the 
Eastbourne Core Strategy and the requirements of the Sustainable Building 
Design Supplementary Planning Document. 5) It has not been 
demonstrated that the mandatory requirements of the Councils policy in 
respect of affordable housing cannot be met and therefore the proposal fails 
to comply with Policy D5 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy 2006-2027 and 
the Affordable Housing Implementation Technical Note 2013. 
 
Appeal: Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate followed, 
taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is 
considered to be written representations 
 

37 Fisherman's Quay, Atlantic Drive.  Application ID 130442  
 

130442 - Atlantic Drive, Site 3, Land rear of 29 The Waterfront - 
Proposed Fishing Quay comprising of buildings with storage and chiller 
Space and office accommodation to upper floors and separate Visitor Centre 
– SOVEREIGN.  One letter of objection, two letters of concern and five 
letter of support had been receieved 

 
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 

 
The observations of Southern Water and Sovereign Harbour Residents 
Association were detailed within the report. 
 
Jan Weeks, Sovereign Harbour Residents Association, addressed the 
committee in support stating that the design was appropriate for the area 
and would provide security for the fishermen, extra employment and the 
purpose built structure would reduce the impact on residents. 

Page 185



4 

Planning 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

 

 

 
Stephen Lloyd MP, addressed the committee in support of the application 
stating that the structure would improve the facilities for the fishing fleet in 
Eastbourne and would be a draw for residents and visitors alike. 
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimous)  That planning permission be granted subject to 
the following conditions: 1) Commencement of development within three 
years 2) Drawing Nos. of approved plans 3) Samples of all materials 4) 
Further details of building operations 5) Submission and approval of a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 6) Submission and approval 
of a Construction Traffic Management Scheme 7) Programme of 
archaeological works 8) Site contamination 9) Drainage Strategy (surface 
water, use of SuDs and foul) 10) Lighting Strategy 11) Refuse and recycling 
details 12) Landscaping details 13) Boundary treatment details 14) Car 
parking spaces to be provided 15) Cycle parking 16) No building to be 
occupied until certificate has been issued certifying BREEAM rating of ‘Very 
Good’ 17) Method statement for handling unspecified contamination 18) 
Wheel washing facilities on site 19) Restriction of external noise levels 20) 
Hours of building operations 21) No burning of waste on site 22) Servicing 
details 23) In accordance with FRA 24) Details of all plant and machinery 
(e.g. air conditioning, refrigeration units, extraction system) including 
predicted noise levels 25) Construction access details and details of location 
and size of any temporary structures 26) Details of directional signage 27) 
Foundation design 28) Details of any temporary structures/hoardings 29) 
Finished floor levels and Details of any changes to site levels to be provided 
prior to commencement on site 30) Bird deterrent measures 31) Opening 
hours of Visitor Centre 7.00am to 10.00pm. 
 
The proposed development will have no significant detrimental effect on the 
wider visual amenities of the locality, the highway network or residential 
amenity and therefore conforms with all relevant planning policies. 
 

38 Gateway Christian Church, Frenchgate Road.  Application ID 
130515  

 

130515 (PPP) - Gateway Christian Church, Frenchgate Road - 
Demolition of existing buildings, removal of temporary buildings and sheds 
and the erection of a new church and community centre, including external 
works – HAMPDEN PARK.  Seven letters of objection and 37 comments of 
support had been receieved. 

 
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of Sussex Police were detailed within the report. 
 
NB: Councillor Taylor was no longer present for this item. 
 
Mr Goymer, objector, addressed the committee stating that the 
development would result in a loss of light and view to his neighbouring 
property, the proposed building edge would restrict views for vehicles 
turning into and out of neighbouring roads, there would not be enough 

Page 186



5 

Planning 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

 
parking for patrons, and the development would be out of keeping with the 
surrounding area. 
 
Mr Saville, Architect, addressed the committee in response stating that the 
development would be a significant investment in the area providing 
additional community facilities and a Police presence in the new building (as 
is currently provided).  Mr Saville also felt that the building would be a 
landmark development giving a boost to the local area. 
 
NB: Councillor Taylor was no longer present for this item. 

 
RESOLVED: (By 5 votes with 2 abstentions) That permission be 
granted subject to the following conditions: 1) Time limit for 
commencement 2) In accordance with approved drawings 3) Submission of 
samples of materials 4) Submission of details of the cycle storage facilities 
5) Vehicular access to be constructed prior to occupation 6) Layout of 
parking spaces prior to occupation of building 7) Protection of visibility 
splays 8) Details of boundary treatment 9) Standard demolition hours of 
work condition. 
 

39 Kings Drive.  Application ID 130468 (RMT)  
 

130468 (RMT) - Land East Of Kings Drive, Kings Drive - Application 
for approval of reserved matters (Details of the appearance and scale of 
buildings and landscaping of the site) following outline approval. 
(EB/2010/0003- Outline Planning Permission for 119 new Dwellings) – 
RATTON.  20 letters of objection had been receieved. 

The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of the Downland, Trees and Woodland Manager, Housing 
Services Manager, Local Highway Manager, County Archaeologist and 
Natural England were detailed within the report. 
 
Paul Humpheys’ Bespoke, addressed the committee in objection requesting 
that cycle parking be provided for houses as well as flats, and that the 
proposed cycle route connect with the existing route. 
 
Stephen Lloyd MP, addressed the committee in objection endorsing 
Bespoke’s comments and stating that the designs were inappropriate for 
the surrouding area, which would not assist in mitigating the impact of the 
development. Stephen Lloyd also highlighted his concerns regarding the 
loss of trees and potential damage to remaining landscaping. 
 
Patrick Griffin, Agent, addressed the committee in response stating that 
the cycle route requested by Bespoke had been included, however they 
had no control over routes outside the development area. 
 
The committee considered the proposals and agreed that the design was 
out of keeping with the surrounding areas.  The committee also felt that 
the plans were not detailed enough, with the design not being ‘inspiring’ 
for the site in such a prominent location. 
 

Page 187



6 

Planning 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

 

 

RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be refused on the grounds that 
the proposal by reason of inappropriate design detailing fails to maintain 
the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area and as such 
is considered to result in material harm to the long and short range views 
into and out of the site. The proposal is therefore contrary to Saved Policy 
UHT1 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan (2001-2011). 
 
Appeal: Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate followed, 
taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is 
considered to be written representations. 
 

40 Marine Road CAC.  Application ID 130316  
 

130316 - 14 and 15 Marine Road And1 Leaf Hall Road - Demolition of 
buildings (14 and 15 Marine Road) and construction of 3 new terrace 
houses in addition to change of use from car valeting to residential with 
creation of flat at 1 Leaf Hall Road – DEVONSHIRE.  One letter of support 
had been received. 
 
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of Highways, Planning Policy and Conservation were 
detailed within the report. 
 
NB: Councillor Taylor was no longer present for this item. 
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted for Conservation 
Area Consent subject to the following conditions:1) Time for 
commencement 2) Standard Demolition Condition. 
 

41 Marine Road PP.  Application ID 130216  
 

130216 - 14 and 15 Marine Road And1 Leaf Hall Road - Demolition of 
buildings (14 and 15 Marine Road) and construction of 3 new terrace 
houses in addition to change of use from car valeting to residential with 
creation of flat at 1 Leaf Hall Road – DEVONSHIRE.  One letter of support 
had been received. 
  
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of Highways, Planning Policy and Conservation were 
detailed within the report. 
 
NB: Councillor Taylor was no longer present for this item. 
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions: 1) Time limit 2) Hard and soft landscaping to be 
submitted 3) Foul and surface water details to be submitted 4) Materials to 
be submitted 5) Details of cycle parking 6) Construction and demolition 
times 7) Removal of PD rights 8) Refuse and recycling facilities to be 
submitted 9) Means of enclosure to be submitted 10) In accordance with 
approved plans 
 

Page 188



7 

Planning 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

 
42 South Downs National Park Authority Planning Applications - 

verbal report.  
 

There were none. 
 
NOTED. 
 

43 Motcombe Baths, Motcombe  
 

Members considered the report of the Specialist Advisor Conservation 

Design proposing that the Motcombe Baths, in Motcombe Conservation Area 
be included inclusion in The Local List. A list of Buildings of Local Interest is 

held by The Council and comprises buildings or structures which make a 
special contribution to the Townscape; represent the work of an important 

local Architect represent a particular style of Architecture, or period in the 
development of the town. 

 
Members noted that following consideration by CAAG (Conservation Area 

Advisory Committee), on 27th August 2013, the Group praised the quality of 
the supporting document, appended to the report and unanimously 

supported the recommendation to the Planning Committee for the inclusion 
of Motcombe Baths as a Building of Local Interest as its meeting on 1 

October 2013. 
  

Public comments had been invited on the inclusion of The Motcombe Baths 
in the local list of Buildings of Local Interest for a period of 21 days between 

27th August 2013 and 17th September 2013.  
 

The report appended to this document had been made available at 1 Grove 
Road, and at The Town Hall. 

 
No representations had been made, however comments relating to content, 

and/or to support the motion in an informal manner, had been received by 
the Specialist Advisor, Conservation & Design. 

 
Members were asked to agree to consult on the inclusion of The Baths, 

Motcombe, as a Building of Local Interest. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Planning committee agree to the consultation on the 
inclusion of The Baths, Motcombe, as a Building of Local Interest. 
 

44 Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan (formerly known as 
Eastbourne Town Centre Area Action Plan).  

 

Members were advised that the Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan (TCLP) 
had been shaped over the last 4 years by close consultation with the 
community and stakeholders.  The Local Plan set out a strategy and 
proposals for the future development and regeneration of the Town Centre 
up to 2027. 
 
The TCLP had been prepared in accordance with the relevant government 
regulations and was submitted to the Government on 31st January 2012. 
Following some concerns the Inspector had with the content of the 
submitted Plan, the Council made changes to strengthen the policy base of 

Page 189



8 

Planning 

Tuesday, 1 October 2013 

 

 

the document, to ensure it demonstrates how and when Town Centre 
proposals would be delivered.  These modifications to the TCLP were 
approved by Cabinet on 6 February 2013 and consulted on between 22nd 
February and 5th April 2013.   
 
The Examination in Public for the TCLP took place on Thursday 16th and 
Friday 17th May 2013. 
 
The Council published a list of proposed Main Modifications to the TCLP and 
stakeholders and the local community were invited to make representations 
on the ‘soundness’ of these proposed Main Modifications between 14th June 
and 26th July 2013.    
 
At a meeting of the Local Planning Steering Group on 30th July it was 
reported that seven representations had been received.  
Members acknowledged the representations received and endorsed the 
responses detailed in the briefing note that had been prepared for the 
meeting.  Copies of the representations were forwarded to the Inspector to 
enable her to prepare a report into the Local Plan’s soundness.  
 
In order to ensure that the plan was found sound, the Council requested 
that it wished the Inspector to recommend any further modifications to the 
TCLP that were necessary to make it sound or legally compliant and 
therefore capable of adoption. 
 
The Final Inspectors Report, together with the Inspector's Appendix of 
proposed Main Modifications (MMs) was formally received on 11 September 
2013. This can be viewed along with the TCLP on the Eastbourne Borough 
Council website www.eastbourne.gov.uk/tclp. The documents can also be viewed in 
hard copy format at the Eastbourne Borough Council Offices, 1 Grove Road 
and local libraries. 
 
Members were asked for their views on the attached report which would be 
reported to Cabinet at their meeting on 23 October 2013 
 
RESOLVED: That Planning committee support Cabinet’s recommendation 
to Full Council that the Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan be formally 
adopted. 

 
The meeting closed at 9.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 Councillor Ungar (Chairman) 
  
 

Page 190



1 

 

Monday, 7 October 2013 

at 6.00 pm 
 

 
 

 

 

Licensing Act Committee 
 
Members: Councillor Shuttleworth (Chairman) Councillors Ungar (Deputy 

Chairman), Ansell, Coles, Cooke, Liddiard, Murdoch, Stanley, 
Warner and West 

 
(Apologies for absence were reported from Councillor Hearn, Councillor Murray and 
Councillor Thompson) 
 
 

 
1 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2013.  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2013 were submitted and 
approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct 
record. 

2 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by 
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of 
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct (please see 
note at end of agenda).  

 
None were received. 

3 Council's Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-2019 and Cumulative 
Impact Policy. Licensing Act 2003, setting out the Council's 
approach for the next 5 years.  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Senior Specialist Advisor 
regarding the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-2019, including 
a revised Cumulative Impact Policy 2014-2019. 
 
As a Licensing Authority, in accordance with Schedule 5 of the Licensing Act 
2003, Eastbourne Borough Council must prepare, consult and publish its 
Statement of Licensing Policy every five years.  
 
The Statement purpose was to promote the four licensing objectives and 
provided guidance to Local Authorities when considering and determining 
applications under the Licensing Act 2003. It also assisted applicants, 
Responsible Authorities and all those making representations (objections) in 
conjunction with the decision making process.  
 
The scope of the Statement covered the retail sale of alcohol, the supply of 
alcohol by or on behalf of a Club or to the order of a member of the Club, 
the provision of regulated entertainment and the provision of late night 
refreshment. 
 

Agenda Item 11c

Page 191



2 

Licensing Act 

Monday, 7 October 2013 

 

 

A public consultation of the Draft Statement of Licensing Policy took place 
between the 27th June 2013 and the 19th September 2013, in accordance 
with the requirements of a 12 week consultation. 
 
A range of organisations and individuals, including Ward Councillors were 
directly consulted about the proposals. To date two responses had been 
received from the Town Centre Manager and the Town Centre Management 
Panel Chair, details of which were appended to the report. 
 
The revised Cumulative Impact Policy, appended to the Policy Statement 
included a statement in support of the Cumulative Impact Zone by the 
Eastbourne Community Safety Partnership.  
 
The Committee noted the implementation timetable for the Policy. Following 
tonight’s meeting; the Policy would seek the comments of the Cabinet, and 
then seek the approval of the Full Council before being published in 
November 2013. 
 
The Committee discussed the Licensing Act Sub Committee process, 
notably where Sussex Police had initially made a representation objecting to 
an application before withdrawing prior or at the meeting itself.   
 
The Senior Specialist Advisor outlined the process prior to a hearing. 
Following an objection by Sussex Police, a negotiating period would occur 
where it would be up to the applicant to satisfy concerns raised by Sussex 
Police and this could be done by attaching certain conditions on the licence. 
If an agreement was made prior to a meeting, the representations are 
withdrawn and there would no longer be a requirement for a meeting to 
take place and the application would be approved.  
 
The Committee then discussed the feedback submitted by the Town Centre 
Manager which expressed a concern about the robustness of the cumulative 
impact policy on alcohol sales for the town centre in determining future 
applications. The Senior Specialist Advisor made reference to the recent 
Tesco, 68 Grove Road application that had been approved after the 
applicant had addressed the concerns raised by Sussex Police by agreeing 
to add various conditions to the licence and successfully rebutted the 
presumption against granting the application arising from the Council’s 
Cumulative Impact Policy. The Senior Specialist Advisor continued that the 
conditions were added to the licence with the aim of deterring street 
drinkers. 
 
It was noted that each application was different and would be judged on its 
own merits. While the Cumulative Impact Policy created a rebuttable 
presumption when valid representation was made, an applicant could still 
provide evidence in their operating schedule or conditions to demonstrate 
that there would be no negative cumulative impact on the area. 
 
The Committee then made reference to the effect of the Cumulative Impact 
Policy and the performance figures for crime related incidents inside the 
Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ). Although the number of reported crimes 
had fallen, the proportion of offences inside the CIZ had risen to 31%. 

Page 192



3 

Licensing Act 

Monday, 7 October 2013 

 
Despite this, it was acknowledged that without the Policy, the statistics 
could potentially be worse and with a Policy in place, it allows the authority 
to intervene where necessary on applications.  
 
The Senior Specialist Advisor added that there had been a decrease in 
vertical drinking establishments and most premises licence were attached 
to Café style establishments. This is consistent with the aims of the 
Cumulative Impact Policy. 
 
It was requested that on the next follow up for the Licensing Policy, a 
breakdown of whether there had been an increase or decrease of drinking 
establishments in the town could be included. 
 
RESOLVED: (1) That the responses to the consultation on the Draft 
Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-2019 and the proposed timetable 
leading up to the policy coming into force on 1st January 2014 be noted. 
 
(2) That any further revisions to the draft Policy be delegated to the Senior 
Head of Infrastructure, in consultation with the Chair of the Licensing Act 
Committee and the relevant Cabinet holder, prior to and following 
consideration by Cabinet and up to final consideration and approval by Full 
Council. 

 
The meeting closed at 6.23 pm 
 
 
 Councillor Shuttleworth 

(Chairman) 
  
 

Page 193



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Tuesday, 8 October 2013 

at 6.00 pm 
 

 
 

 

 

Conservation Area Advisory Group 
 
PRESENT:- 
 
Councillor Shuttleworth (Chairman) and Councillors Thompson, Belsey and Warner 
 
Officers: 
 
Ms C Dales – Specialist Advisor – Conservation and Design  
Ms J Sabin – Case Worker 
 
ADVISORS: 
 
Mr N Howell, Eastbourne Society 
 
(An apology of absence was reported from Mr Crook) 
 
 

 
24 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 August 2013 - Previously 

circulated.  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 August was submitted and approved 
and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct record. 

25 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by 
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of 
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct (please see 
note at end of agenda).  

 
Councillor Belsey declared a personal interest in item 6 – Myrtle Cottage, 
Old Barn Close and remained in the room but did not take part in the 
discussion. 

26 Planning Applications - Decisions of the Borough Council  
 

The decisions of the Planning Committee on applications in Conservation 
Areas were reported. 

NOTED. 

27 Planning Applications for Consideration  
 

The Specialist Advisor - Conservation and Design reported on planning 
applications for consideration in the Conservation Areas. The Group’s 
comments were set out in the schedule below. 

Agenda Item 11d

Page 195



2 

Conservation Area Advisory Group 

Tuesday, 8 October 2013 

 

 

1) 130530 & 130712 (Full Plans & Listed Building Consent) 11 THE 
GOFFS 

Cons Area: N/A  

Proposal: The conversion of a detached house currently set out and used as 
housing in multiple occupation into a single dwelling. 

CAAG Comments: This application was deferred subject to revised plans 
being submitted by the applicant. 

2) 130550 (Full Plans) TESCO, 68 GROVE ROAD 

Cons Area: Town Centre & Seafront  

Proposal: Minor material amendment to permission EB/2012/0667 for the 
change of use of part of ground floor from offices (B1) to retail (A1) 
together with new shopfront. Amendment sought: Relocation of the 
shopfront entrance to the left of the front elevation. 

CAAG Comments: No objections raised. 

3) 130584 (Full Plans) 34 LUSHINGTON ROAD 

Cons Area: Town Centre & Seafront  

Proposal: Retrospective Application for the installation of double glazing 
replacement windows on the rear elevation. 

CAAG Comments: This application was not discussed at the meeting as 
the proposal had been approved under delegated powers. 

4) 130607 (Advertisement consent) THE MALTHOUSE, 126 WISH HILL 

Cons Area: Willingdon  

Proposal: Swing sign attached to existing bracket on side street side of 
building. 

CAAG Comments: This application was deferred due to insufficient details 
being submitted by the applicant. 

5) 130610 (Full Plans) PREMIER EXTRA, SEASIDE ROAD 

Cons Area: Town Centre & Seafront  

Proposal: Alterations to shopfront and relocation of staircase serving flats 
above shop unit. 

CAAG Comments: The Group raised no objections in principle subject to 
better detailing on the enclosure. It was suggested that a slate covered 
mansard be used instead as it would be more appropriate for the 
surrounding Conservation Area. 

6) 130613 (Householder) MYRTLE COTTAGE OLD BARN CLOSE 

Cons Area: Willingdon  

Proposal: Single storey extension to rear elevation. 

CAAG Comments: The Group raised objections to the proposal as the 
extension would be out of keeping with the surrounding conservation area. 
The Group identified concerns with the design, mass of the roof and the 
inappropriate detailing. The proposal would also have a detrimental impact 
on the adjacent listed building. It was suggested that the applicant submit a 
revised design that would be more appropriate for the area. 

Page 196



3 

Conservation Area Advisory Group 

Tuesday, 8 October 2013 

 
(NB: Councillor Belsey declared a personal interest in this item and 
remained in the room but did not take part in the discussion) 

7) 130639 (Householder) 2 WARREN COURT, 3A MEADS STREET 

Cons Area: Meads 

Proposal: Replacement of existing wooden framed, double glazed windows 
at the rear elevation of Flat 2, to white internally beaded UPVC windows. 

CAAG Comments: No objections raised. 

8)130663 (Listed Building Consent) 16 ALL SAINTS, 22 DARLEY ROAD 

Cons Area: Meads  

Proposal: Installation of secondary glazing to three windows on ground floor 
of duplex flat. 

CAAG Comments: The Group raised objections to the secondary glazing 
and the impact it would have on the character and appearance of the listed 
building. It was suggested that the windows should be altered to 
accommodate slimlite double glazing.  

9) 130668 (Listed Building Consent) CORNFIELD HOUSE, 15 
CORNFIELD TERRACE 

Cons Area: Town Centre & Seafront  

Proposal: Renewal of Listed Building Consent for change of use of property 
for use as 6 self contained flats with associated works.(Original permission 
REF: 100365 -OLD REF: EB/2010/0431) 

CAAG Comments: No objections raised. 

10) 130673 & 130674 (Householder & Conservation Area Consent) 11 
PARK CLOSE 

Cons Area: Park Close 

Proposal: Proposed two storey rear extension. Demolition of existing garage 
and erection of replacement garage. Conservation Area Consent also 
applied for (REF: 130674) 

CAAG Comments: Due to a technical issue, it was agreed that the 
application be deferred subject to plans and details of the proposal being 
forwarded to the Group following the meeting. The Group’s comments 
would be recorded at the next meeting. 

11) 130683 (Full Plans) 31 LUSHINGTON ROAD 

Cons Area: Town Centre & Seafront 

Proposal: Single storey extension to side. 

CAAG Comments: The Group raised no objections in principle with the 
extension subject to a compromise being agreed with the applicant over a 
suitable design of the extension that preserves the character of the 
surrounding area. The Group had expressed concerns about the loss of the 
boundary wall but suggested incorporating a new rendered wall into the 
side wall of the extension, together with the relocation of the windows. 

Mr Hanna addressed the Group in support of the application.  

12) 130690 (Full Plans) 18-22 TERMINUS ROAD 

Cons Area: Town Centre & Seafront  

Page 197



4 

Conservation Area Advisory Group 

Tuesday, 8 October 2013 

 

 

Proposal: Variation of condition 2 (approved drawings) and removal of 
condition 3 (materials) attached to planning permission EB/2011/0402. 
Proposed conversion of office accommodation on first and second floors to 
provide 3 residential units (1No. Studio and 2No. 1 bed flats) including 
provision of balcony at first floor level and roof garden at second floor level. 

CAAG Comments: No objections raised. 

13) 130693 (Full Plans) T J HUGHES, 177-187 TERMINUS ROAD 

Cons Area: Town Centre & Seafront  

Proposal: Remove existing terrazzo slabs around the perimeter of the store 
at Terminus Road and Seaside Road due to poor condition and replace with 
new terrazzo tiles to match existing. 

CAAG Comments: The Group raised no objections subject to the approval 
of materials. 

NOTED. 

28 New Listings  
 

The Specialist Advisor – Conservation and Design advised the Group that 
the Tally Ho pub had been given a Grade II listing. The Group was also 
advised that following its meeting on the 1 October 2013, the Planning 
Committee agreed to include The Motcombe Baths in the list of Buildings of 
Local Interest.  

NOTED. 

29 Dates of future meetings - All at 6.00 p.m. at the Town Hall  
 

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as the 19 November 2013 (at 
6.00pm at the Town Hall). 

 
The meeting closed at 7.10 pm 
 
 
 Councillor Shuttleworth 

(Chairman) 
  
 

Page 198



1 

 

Cabinet 

 
 

 

Minutes of meeting held on Wednesday, 23 October 2013 at 6.00 pm. 
 
Present:- 
Councillors David Tutt (Chairman and Leader of the Council), Gill Mattock 
((Deputy Chairman and Deputy Leader of the Council), Margaret Bannister, 
Carolyn Heaps, Troy Tester and Steve Wallis. 
 

 
39 Minutes of of the meeting held on 4 September 2013  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2013 were submitted 
and approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a 
correct record. 
 

40 Declarations of interest by members (please see note at end of 
agenda).  

 

Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs) by members as 
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and other interests as 
required by the Code of Conduct and regulation 12(2)(d) of the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012: 
 

(a) Councillor Tutt declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
matters reported in minute 41 (Assets of Community Value) in view 
of a family connection with one of the petitioners and withdrew from 
the meeting. 
(b) Councillor Tester declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
matters reported in minute 41 (Assets of Community Value) in view 
of his management role in 2 pharmacies near the subject premises 
and withdrew from the meeting. 
(c) Councillors Mattock and West declared personal (and non-
prejudicial) interests in matters reported in minute 52 (Wealden and 
Eastbourne Lifeline) as they were non-executive directors of the 
company.  They chose to withdraw. 
(d) The Monitoring Officer reported that dispensations had been 
granted to all Councillors on 9 October 2013 to enable them to 
participate in discussions and in voting on all matters relating to 
minute 45 (Information Technology provision for elected members). 

 
41 Assets of Community Value (ACV) - Localism Act 2011  
 

41.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive. The 
Localism Act 2011 provided for a scheme whereby local authorities were 
required to maintain a list of assets of community value which had been 
nominated by the local community and which in the view of the authority 
met detailed criteria.  When listed assets came up for sale or change of 
ownership, a moratorium was imposed to give community groups the 
time to develop a bid and raise the money to buy the asset when it came 

Agenda Item 11e

Page 199



2 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 

 

on the open market. The objective of the regime was to help local 
communities retain relevant sites in public use as part of local life.  
Regulations prescribed in detail how the Council should operate the 
scheme.  A summary of the requirements was set out in the report. 
 
41.2 The Council’s first application for listing as an asset of community 
value had been received in relation to the Drive Public House, 153 
Victoria Drive.  A copy of the application was appended to the report.  
Taking into account all of the evidence available, Cabinet was 
recommended to enter the property into the Council’s list of Assets of 
Community Value. The grounds for this recommendation were as follows:  

• The asset lay within the administrative boundaries of Eastbourne 
Borough Council. 

• The Save the Drive group was considered to be a community body 
with a local connection and is entitled under 89(2)b)(iii) of the Act 
to make a community nomination in respect of  the Asset. 

• The nomination made by the community body included the 
matters required under Regulation 6 of the Regulations. 

• The Asset did not fall within a description of land which might not 
be listed as specified in Schedule 1 of the Regulations. 

• The nomination form sets out the reasons for nominating the 
asset, explaining why the nominator believed the Asset met the 
definition in the Act.  

And, in addition, in the opinion of the Authority, 
(a) there was a time in the recent past when an actual use of the 
building or other land that was not an ancillary use furthered the social 
wellbeing or interests of the local community, and 
(b) it was realistic to think that there would be a time in the next five 
years when there could be non-ancillary use of the building or other land 
that would further (whether or not in the same way as before) the social 
wellbeing or social interests of the local community. 
 
41.3 Under the legislation, the decision-making process was 
circumscribed by the Regulations. These set strict criteria for decision-
making and left minimal scope for creative interpretation.  For these 
reasons it would be appropriate to agree delegated arrangements to 
allow officers to deal with future applications.  These were summarised in 
Appendix 2 to the report. 
 
41.4 Resolved: (1) That 153 Victoria Drive be listed as an asset of 
community value pursuant to regulations made under the Localism Act 
2011 and that the reasons as set out above be confirmed 
 
(2) That the arrangements for the determination of future nominations to 
list assets as asset of community value outlined in the officer’s report, 
together with the specific delegations to officers outlined in Appendix 2 
to the report, be approved. 
 
Note: See minute 40(a)-(b) above as to disclosures of interest by 
Councillors Tester and Tutt.  Councillor Mattock took the chair for this 
item. 
 

Page 200



3 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 
42 * Eastbourne Community Safety Plan  
 

42.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Community 
inviting consideration of the achievements and future risks and 
opportunities to performance in relation to the 2011/14 Community 
Safety Plan.  Bob Gough, Eastbourne Crime Reduction Officer and Chief 
Inspector Steve Biglands, District Police Commander, were invited to 
address the Cabinet.   
 
42.2 Cabinet had previously endorsed the successful performance of the 
Eastbourne Community Safety Partnership.  In 2005/2006 Eastbourne 
was subject to around 11,000 crimes.  For the performance year 
2010/2011 this had dropped to approximately 7,500 crimes.  For the 
current rolling year up to the end of June 2013, this had reduced to 
around 6,000 crimes, a further reduction of 9% compared with the same 
period last year.  A copy of the 3-year plan (2011/14) and final year 
refresh (2013/14) along with the 2013/14 action plan were appended to 
the report. 
 
42.3 Concerns were raised at the possibility that the Partnership’s budget 
could be reduced in future and that this could impact on performance in 
2014/15. 
 
42.4 * Resolved (Budget and Policy Framework): (1) That Cabinet 
notes the CSP’s achievements and future risks/opportunities to 
performance and endorses the updated 2011/2014 Community Safety 
Plan with continued delegated implementation authority to Senior Head 
of Community. 
 
(2) That full Council be asked to approve the updated Plan. 
 

43 *Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan  
 

43.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Development.  
The Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan (TCLP) had been shaped over 
the last 4 years by close consultation with the community and 
stakeholders.  The Local Plan set out a strategy and proposals for the 
future development and regeneration of the Town Centre up to 2027. 
 
43.2 The TCLP had been prepared in accordance with the relevant 
government regulations and had been submitted to the government on 
31 January 2012.  Following some concerns the Inspector had with the 
content of the submitted Plan, the Council made changes to strengthen 
the policy base of the document, to ensure it demonstrated how and 
when Town Centre proposals would be delivered.  These modifications to 
the TCLP were approved by Cabinet on 6 February 2013 and consulted 
on between 22 February and 5 April 2013.   
 
43.3 The Examination in Public for the TCLP took place on 16/17 May 
2013 and the focus of the examination sessions included discussions on 
the following key issues: 

Matter 4: Quantum and Type of Development  
Matter 5: Development Opportunity Sites – General Matters 

Page 201



4 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 

 

Matter 6: Development Opportunity Sites – Site Specific Matters 
Matter 7: Public Realm Projects/Initiatives 

 
43.4 During the hearing sessions, the Planning Inspector sought 
additional information and clarification from the Council on a number of 
matters.  The Council was invited to put forward suggested amendments 
to address or clarify these issues.  The Council published a list of 
proposed Main Modifications to the TCLP and stakeholders and the local 
community were invited to make representations on the ‘soundness’ of 
these proposed Main Modifications between 14 June and 26 July 2013. 
Seven representations were received and these had been forwarded to 
the Inspector along with the Council’s response (which had been 
formulated in liaison with the Local Plan Steering Group).   
 
43.5 The Final Inspector’s Report, together with the Inspector's Appendix 
of proposed Main Modifications was received on 11 September 2013 and 
had been made available for public to view in person and on the 
Council’s website. 
 
43.6 The Inspector’s report had concluded that the TCLP provided an 
appropriate basis for the planning of the Town Centre over the next 15 
years providing a number of modifications are made to the Plan. Most of 
the modifications to address this were proposed by the Council, and the 
Inspector recommended their inclusion after full consideration of the 
representations from other parties on these issues. 
 
43.7 The modifications were summarised as follows:  

• Amend references to planning for housing and office space to 
ensure consistency with the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 
(adopted February 2013). 

• Make a range of changes to the development opportunity sites to 
clarify their status as site allocations, set out a clear programme 
and strategy for delivery and demonstrate that project planning 
has commenced. 

• Make changes to ensure that the public realm projects, including 
the arts trail, are positively planned and deliverable. 

• Clarify the methodology and timing for taking forward the 
potential areas of change. 

• Update development management policies to take account of 
recent developments and strategies, especially the cycling 
strategy. 

• Re-draft the building heights/ tall buildings policy to ensure that it 
is justified and coherent. 

• Re-draft the implementation and monitoring section to ensure that 
it is effective and supports delivery of the Plan.  

 
43.8 After adoption, the Local Plan policies would be material 
considerations in the determination of planning applications for 
development in the Town Centre, along with the Eastbourne Core 
Strategy Local Plan and the saved policies from the Eastbourne Borough 
Plan (2003).  
 

Page 202



5 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 
43.9 The TCLP would also be a guide for developers and the community 
to show where and how the Town Centre would grow and develop in the 
future. Its main vision was that by 2027, ‘Eastbourne Town Centre would 
be a place that attracted more shoppers, workers, residents and visitors 
to spend more time enjoying a vibrant and varied offer and mix of uses 
in a well connected series of attractive streets and public spaces.  
Increasing investment in the town would bring wide-ranging benefits and 
would allow Eastbourne to respond positively to climate change. 
 
43.10 * Resolved (Budget and Policy Framework): (1) That full 
Council be recommended to approve for adoption the Eastbourne Town 
Centre Local Plan along with the revised Policies Map. 
 
(2) That any minor or technical adjustments found necessary in the Town 
Centre Local Plan are delegated to the Senior Head of Development in 
consultation with the Cabinet portfolio holder. 
 

44 Counter Fraud Prosecution Policy  
 

44.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Community.  It 
was estimated that nationally £5.2b was lost to the public purse each 
year through fraud and error in the welfare benefits system.  In addition, 
£90m was lost nationally in Council Tax revenue through Single Person 
Discount Fraud. 
 
44.2 In 2010, HM Revenue and Customs and the Department for Work 
and Pensions produced a Fraud Strategy document which set out an 
approach to fraud under five themes - Prevent, Detect, Correct, Punish 
and Deter. The Council’s Benefit team had procedures in place to prevent 
fraud entering the system, detect fraud that got into the system and 
correct claims that were found to be incorrect.  The policy now before 
Cabinet for approval set out the Council’s approach to the Punish and 
Deter themes.  
 
44.3 Since the current counter fraud policy was adopted (February 2008) 
significant changes to legislation had occurred, including the increase in 
the level of administrative penalties; the introduction of a local scheme 
of support to replace Council Tax Benefit and the re-focussing of the 
fraud team on more corporate-wide issues. 
 
44.4 Even with robust procedures in place fraud and error would enter 
the system. This could be through a person starting work and not telling 
the Council or someone claiming a Council Tax discount which they were 
not entitled to. 
 
44.5 In 2012/13 the Fraud team identified £472,198 of overpaid benefit.  
This was made up of a combination of fraudulent activity and claimant 
error. The team administered 15 prosecution, 11 administrative penalties 
and six cautions.  The activities of the fraud team prevented £418,279 in 
benefit being paid out where there was no, or a reduced, entitlement. 
 

Page 203



6 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 

 

44.6 The revised policy was appended to the report and maintained 
many of the principles of the current policy.  For example, there were no 
changes to sanctions limits, whilst incorporating changes to legislation; 
the introduction of a local scheme of support for Council Tax and taking 
on board comments received from the Citizens Advice Bureau during the 
consultation exercise. 
 
44.7 Resolved: That the Counter Fraud Prosecution policy is adopted. 
 

45 * Information Technology Provision for Elected Members  
 

45.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Infrastructure 
following detailed work undertaken to examine the future IT 
requirements of Councillors in the light of the Council’s move to agile and 
other new working methods.  Councillors had participated in a workshop 
event and a group of councillors were trialling the use of tablet devices.  
A new committee management system had recently been implemented 
and part of this work had also involved exploring how committee 
documents could be delivered electronically to the tablet devices via an 
app.  
 
45.2 Councillors and officers needed access regularly to confidential 
information, i.e. any information that was not in the public domain, to 
enable them to fulfil their role.  Government security requirements, 
mandated by the Public Services Network (PSN) Code of Connection, as 
well as data protection legislation, required the Council to ensure that 
such data and information was properly secured in accordance with a 
detailed set of standards.   
 
45.3 The current IT options available to councillors were approved by 
Council in July 2007.  Option 1 involved councillors providing their own IT 
equipment.  Option 2 involved the council delivering a full solution 
including laptop and broadband.  Currently 21 councillors had opted for 
Option 1 and six for Option 2. 
 
45.4 As a result of the security requirements mentioned above, the 
Council was required to withdraw Option 1.  All councillors would need to 
be provided with council equipment to ensure that the Council 
maintained its PSN accreditation.  In this context, the proposed new 
options were as follows: 

• Option 1 – a portable tablet solution enabling secure mobile access 
to email, council documents and committee papers.  

• Option 2 – a standard council laptop, of the same model issued to 
council staff with a flexible work style.  

 
45.5 As part of these changes it would be necessary to temporarily 
withdraw the use of Outlook Web Access, which currently enabled 
councillors to access their council email from non-council equipment, 
such as home computers, smartphones and personal tablets.  It was 
hoped to reinstate Outlook Web Access from non-council devices 
following an upgrade of the email server and the installation of some 
additional security in 2014. 

Page 204



7 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 
 
45.6 The options approved in 2007 made provision for an IT allowance to 
be given to councillors who selected Option 1.  Councillors who selected 
Option 2 did not receive an allowance. Consideration was given to the 
impact of the new options on the IT allowance for members.  Much had 
changed since the 2007 report.  Most homes now had broadband 
provision, wi-fi was widely available and many people now used tablet 
computers instead of laptops and e-book readers or tablets instead of 
reading hard copy books and newspapers.  The council’s own agile 
working programme had radically reduced the use of paper across the 
organisation and the intention was that councillors would rely less on 
paper over time. 
 
45.7 It was therefore proposed that, irrespective of the option selected, 
the council would not provide broadband or printing facilities at 
councillors’ homes.  Since most councillors had selected to use their own 
broadband anyway, the impact of this would be limited.  In recognition of 
the fact that councillors would be using their own broadband and, if 
required, printing facilities, it was proposed to retain the IT allowance at 
the existing level for all councillors, irrespective of which option they 
chose.  Councillors who currently did not claim the IT allowance would in 
future receive it, and this cost could be met from within existing budgets. 
 
45.8 As with all members of staff, councillors would be required to 
adhere to the council’s IT Acceptable Use Policy (AUP).  Under the Agile 
Working Programme an ‘Agile Ways of Working’ handbook was developed 
to support staff in the transition to new ways of working.  A similar guide 
had been developed, called ‘Guidance for Councillors in an Agile Working 
Environment’. 
 
45.9 The one-off costs of implementing the new policy were built into the 
Agile Working Phase 2 budget and would be met from existing capital 
funding.  The annual costs would be met from existing revenue budgets. 
 
45.10 * Resolved: That full Council be recommended to: 
(a) Adopt the new options for councillors IT provision as detailed in the 
report. 
(b) Continue the IT allowance scheme for all councillors to contribute 
towards broadband and printing costs. 
(c) Adopt of the new Protocol for Councillors in an Agile Working 
environment and associated policy changes. 
 
Note:  See minute 40(d) above as to dispensation granted to all 
councillors to enable them to participate in this matter. 
 

46 * Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 -2019 and 
Cumulative Impact Policy. Licensing Act 2003  

 

46.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Specialist Adviser.  The 
Council was required to consult, review and publish its Statement of 
Licensing Policy at regular intervals. The purpose of the Statement was 
to promote the Licensing Objectives.  It set out the general approach 

Page 205



8 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 

 

taken by the Authority when considering and determining applications 
under the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Objectives were: 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 
• Public safety. 
• The prevention of public nuisance. 
• The protection of children from harm. 

The scope of a Licensing Policy Statement covers the following: 
• Retail sales of alcohol. 
• The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club or to the order of a 

member of the club. 
• The provision of regulated entertainment. 
• The provision of late night refreshment. 

 
46.2 Public consultation of the draft Statement took place for 12 weeks 
between the 27 June and 19 September 2013.  A range of organisations 
and individuals were directly consulted, including ‘Responsible 
Authorities’, ward councillors, all premises licence and club premises 
certificate holders in the borough, neighbourhood panels and residents 
groups, hospitality and trade associations and various forums of 
representative groups.  The draft was also posted on the Council’s 
website and notices placed at council offices and the Central Library.  A 
copy of the draft formed appendix 1 to the report.  Responses were 
received from the Town Centre Manager (wishing to see a robust 
cumulative impact policy to meet the challenge of an increasing number 
of alcohol licensing applications in the town centre) and the Chair of the 
Town Centre Neighbourhood Panel (in full support of the policy) 
(appendix 2 to the report).  
 
46.3 The Council’s Licensing Act Committee had considered and 
endorsed the draft policy at their meeting on 7 October 2013.  Subject 
to full Council approval on the 20 November 2013, the updated policy 
would come into effect on 1 January 2014. 
 
46.4 It was reported verbally that following publication of the report it 
had been noticed that point 3.2 on page 65 of the Draft Licensing Act 
policy Statement (part of the cumulative impact policy) could be 
perceived as contradictory.  It was suggested that this text should be 
removed prior to ratification by full Council to remove any notion of 
contradiction. 
 
46.5 * Resolved (Budget and Policy Framework):  (1) That the 
response to the consultation on the draft Statement of Licensing Policy 
2014 – 2019 and the proposed timetable leading up to the policy coming 
into force on 1st January 2014 be noted. 
 
(2) That point 3.2 on page 65 of the policy statement be deleted as this 
could be perceived as contradictory. 
 
(3) That full Council be recommended to approve the draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy 2014-2019, as amended. 

Page 206



9 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 
47 The Park Close Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 

Plan  
 

47.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Development.  
The Park Close Conservation Area and Management Appraisal was one of 
a rolling programme of appraisals, to cover all the conservation areas in 
the Borough. The Council had a duty to review, formulate and publish 
appraisals and management plans for the preservation and enhancement 
of the Borough’s 12 conservation areas.  The Park Close Conservation 
Area covered a small area of 1.255 hectares, adjacent to the west of 
Gildredge Park in Old Town.  The Appraisal had been prepared according 
to English Heritage Guidance Manual (2011) and English Heritage’s 
Guidance.  It set out the special architectural and historic interest of the 
area and provided information on the best approach to managing 
change, in order to conserve or enhance the special interest of the area.  
The management plan included a proposal that Article 4 Directions be 
investigated given the special nature and visual cohesion of the 
dwellings, together with the quality and extent of original designs, and 
this would be the subject of a future report to the Council’s Planning 
Committee.  It was also recommended that the existing boundary be 
retained, to help maintain the special architectural and historic character 
of the Conservation Area.   
 
47.2 The appraisal and management plan had been made available to 
the public for a period of 12 weeks, from 24 May to 16 August 2013.  
The appraisal was also made available on the Councils website, and 
paper copies on deposit at the Council’s main offices and the Eastbourne 
Central Library. One comment only had been received from the 
Twentieth Century Society in relation to the Article 4 Direction proposal 
and this had now been included in the management plan (appendix 1 to 
the report).  Both the Council’s Conservation Area Advisory Group (on 14 
May 2013) and the Planning Committee (on 21 May 2013) had 
considered and endorsed the proposals.   
 
47.3 Resolved (Key Decision):  That the Appraisal and Management 
Plan adopted.  
 

48 Exclusion of the public.  
 

Resolved: That the public be excluded from the remainder of the 
meeting as otherwise there was a likelihood of disclosure to them of 
exempt information as defined in schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  The relevant paragraphs of schedule 12A and descriptions of 
the exempt information are shown in the items below.  (The requisite 
notices had been given under regulation 5 of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012.) 
 
 

49 Summary of confidential proceedings for information  
 

The full minutes of the under-mentioned items are set out in the 
confidential section of these minutes.  The reports remain confidential. 

Page 207



10 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 23 October 2013 

 

 

 
50 Alternative Employment Procedure  
 

 
Cabinet noted that 3 employees were subject to the procedure at 
present. They noted the actions taken to manage implications of change 
for displaced individuals. 
 
Exempt information reasons 1 and 2 – Information relating to an 
individual or likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 

51 Housing Asset Management  
 

 
Cabinet approved proposals for the reconfiguration and refurbishment of 
a council owned property into 4 new flats.  The address of this terraced 
Victorian property was not disclosed as the self-contained flat within the 
premises was still occupied.  The remainder of the property comprising 
shared bedsits was empty.  The best option was considered to be 
conversion and sale for owner occupation.  Should the flats remain 
unsold after 6 months they would be retained within the Council’s 
housing stock.  In addition Cabinet approved the purchase of 2 flats to 
provide accommodation for the Council’s Homelessness Change 
Programme. (Key Decision) 
 
Exempt information reasons 1, 2, and 3.  Information relating to an 
individual or likely to reveal the identity of an individual and information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 

52 *Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline - Investment and Change of 
Governance  

 

 
Cabinet recommended full Council to approve planned development 
proposals for the company, including governance, funding and delegation 
arrangements.  Scrutiny Committee was also asked to consider this 
matter at special meeting on 6 November.  The proposals were 
considered to provide for the future success of the company. (Budget 
and Policy Framework) 
 
Exempt information reasons: 3- Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information) and 4 - information relating to any consultations or 
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.00 pm 

 
 Councillor David Tutt 
 Chairman 
 
 

Page 208



1 

 

Tuesday, 29 October 2013 

at 6.00 pm 
 

 
 

 

 

Planning Committee 
Present:- 
Members: Councillor Ungar (Chairman) Councillors Harris, Hearn, Jenkins, 

Liddiard, Miah, Murray and Taylor. 
 
 
 

 
45 Minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2013.  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2013 were submitted and 
approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct 
record. 

46 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by 
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of 
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct (please see 
note at end of agenda).  

 

Councillor Hearn declared an interest in items 6 and 7, 25a Belmore Road 
and Coventry Court, 437 Seaside respectively, as a Director of Eastbourne 
Homes and withdrew from the room whilst this item was considered.  
 
Councillor Taylor declared a prejudicial interest in item 8, PR Autos, Downs 
Garage, 44-48 East Dean Road as the owner of a rest home within 
Eastbourne.  Councillor Taylor also stated that he was an acquaintance of 
both the applicant and objector, and withdrew from the room whilst this 
item was considered.  
  
Councillor Liddiard considered that having previously reached a view in 
relation to item 10, Land East of Kings Drive as he had pre-determined this 
application. He therefore withdrew from the room whilst the application 
was considered. 

47 25a Belmore Road.  Application ID. 120905. 
 

120905  EB/2012/0319 - 25a Belmore Road - Demolition of building – 
DEVONSHIRE.  One general comment relating to the application had been 
receieved and was detailed within the report. 
 
NB: Councillor Hearn withdrew from the room whilst this item was 
considered. 
 
RESOLVED: (By 5 votes to 1 with 1 abstention) That permission be 
granted subject to the following conditions: 1) Method statement (to 
include nature of demolition, equipment to be used, recycling streams and 

Agenda Item 11f

Page 209



2 

Planning 

Tuesday, 29 October 2013 

 

 

access / transport routes for demolition vehicles) 2) Wheel washing facilities 
3) Site/welfare compound 4) Hours of demolition. 
 

48 Coventry Court, 437 Seaside.  Application ID. 120906. 
 

120906  EB/2012/0319 - Coventry Court, 437 Seaside - Demolition of 
building – DEVONSHIRE.  Two comments were received in support of the 
principle, but raising the concerns regarding demolition. 
 
The observations of the Arboriculturalist and Environmental Health were 
summarised within the report. 
 
NB: Councillor Hearn withdrew from the room whilst this item was 
considered. 
 
RESOLVED: (By 5 votes to 1 with 1 abstention) That permission be 
granted subject to the following conditions: 1) Method statement (to 
include nature of demolition, equipment to be used, recycling streams and 
access / transport routes for demolition vehicles) 2) Wheel washing facilities 
3) Site/welfare compound 4) Hours of demolition. 
 

49 P R Autos, Downs Garage, 44-48 East Dean Road.  Application ID. 
130397. 

 

130397 (OSR) - P R Autos, Downs Garage, 44-48 East Dean Road - 
Proposed demolition of existing buildings and erection of a 3 storey 47 
bedroomed home for the elderly – OLD TOWN.  15 objections had been 
received. 
 
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of the Planning Policy Manager, Cleansing, Highways 
Dept, Downland, Trees and Woodland Manager, Economic Development, 
Environmental Health, Estate Manager, Southern Water and South East 
Water were summarised within the report. 
 
Mr Whatley, local resident, addressed the committee in objection stating 
that the height of the proposed building would be intrusive, and would 
result in residents of the proposed care home having eyeline views into his 
property.  Mr Whatley also stated that many people from outside 
Eastbournewould be unaware of the entrance/exit and it would therefore 
become a traffic hazard. 
 
Mr Coffey, Planning Consultant for the applicant, addressed the committee 
in reposnse stating that the principle of the change of use was acceptable 
and that the proposal had been designed to take into consideration when 
planning height levels throughout the site.  The windows would be at a 45 
degree angle from existing properties to avoid overlooking. 
 
NB: Councillor Taylor withdrew from the room whilst this item was 
considered. 
 

Page 210



3 

Planning 

Tuesday, 29 October 2013 

 
RESOLVED:  (Unanimous) That permission be refused on the grounds 
that 1) the proposed development is considered unacceptable by virtue of 
its inappropriate siting, excessive footprint, height and massing which fails 
to adequately address the difference in ground levels and proximity 
between the application site and the rear of houses along the south west 
side of Longlands Road where it would result in a visually dominating and 
overbearing structure in relation to these houses. As such, it is considered 
that the proposal would be contrary to Policies UHT1 and UHT4 of the 
Eastbourne Local Plan and Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy. 2) By 
virtue of the inappropriate siting, excessive footprint, height and massing, it 
is considered that the proposed development would result in an 
unacceptable loss of sunlight in the early evening and overshadowing to 
rear windows and gardens of houses on the south west side of Longlands 
Road. As such, it is considered that the proposal would be contrary to Policy 
H020 of the Eastbourne Local Plan and Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core 
Strategy. 3) The proposed development is considered unacceptable by 
virtue of its inappropriate positioning of windows at first and second floor 
level to the north east corner of the building which would directly overlook 
the rear gardens and  habitable rooms of houses along the south west side 
of Longlands Road. As such, it is considered that the proposal would result 
in an unacceptable loss of privacy to these houses, adversely affecting the 
amenities of the residential occupiers, contrary to Policy H020 of the 
Eastbourne Local Plan and Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy.  4) 
The positioning of parking spaces adjacent to the north east boundary to 
the rear of nos. 5 and 7 Longlands Road is considered to be unacceptable 
by virtue of their inappropriate location and close proximity to the rear 
elevations of these residential houses at an elevated level which could 
potentially cause noise and disturbance to the residential occupiers from 
revving engines, doors closing, beaming headlights and noise emanating 
from drivers and passengers. As such, it is considered that the proposal 
would adversely affect the amenities of adjacent residential occupiers, 
contrary to Policy H020 of the Eastbourne Local Plan and Policy B2 of the 
Eastbourne Core Strategy.  
 
Appeal: Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate followed, 
taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is 
considered to be written representations. 
 

50 Unit C, Glennys Estate, 158 Latimer Road.  Application ID. 130547.  
 

130467 (PPP) - Unit C, Glennys Estate, 158 Latimer Road - Change of 
use from B1 (Business) to D2 (Leisure) – DEVONSHIRE.   Seven 
objections had been received. 
 
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of the Local Highway Manager, Planning Policy Manager 
and Environmental Health were summarised within the report. 
 
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be refused on the grounds 
that: 1) the proposed change of use to a D2 exercise training facility is 
considered unacceptable by virtue of the failure to submit any sufficient 
marketing evidence to demonstrate that the existing B1/B8 business unit is 
no longer viable or suitable and, therefore, genuine redundancy cannot be 

Page 211



4 

Planning 

Tuesday, 29 October 2013 

 

 

accepted. As such, it is considered that the proposal is contrary to Policies 
BI1 and BI4 of the Eastbourne Local Plan, Policy D2 of the Eastbourne Core 
Strategy and the Genuine Redundancy of Business Premises SPG. 2) The 
proposed use, suitability of the building and its location and opening hours 
are not considered appropriate given the residential nature of the 
surrounding area and is likely to adversely affect surrounding residential 
amenity from noise and disturbance from music and exercise classes. As 
such, it is considered that the proposal is contrary to Policy H020 of the 
Eastbourne Local Plan and Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy. 3) 
The proposed change of use is considered to be unacceptable by virtue of 
the lack of sufficient on-site parking facilities for customers and staff which 
would significantly add to increased on-street parking demand and 
congestion on the public highway, to the detriment of local residents, 
particularly in the early evening hours. As such, it is considered that the 
proposal is contrary to Policies TR11 and H020 of the Eastbourne Local Plan 
and Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy.  
 
Appeal: Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate followed, 
taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is 
considered to be written representations. 
 

51 Land East Of Kings Drive, Kings Drive.  Application ID.  130468. 
 

130468 (RMT) - Land East Of Kings Drive, Kings Drive - Application 
for approval of reserved matters (Details of the appearance and scale of 
buildings and landscaping of the site) following outline approval of 
EB/2010/0003- Outline Planning Permission for 119 new Dwellings) – 
RATTON.  20 objections had been received.  A letter of objection from 
Stephen Lloyd, MP was read at the meeting, a response from the agent was 
also provided. 
 
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
 
The observations of the Downland, Trees and Woodland Manager, Housing 
Services Manager, Local Highway Manager, County Archaeologist and 
Natural England were summarised within the report.  
 
Bespoke Cycle Group had made an objection to the application on the 
grounds that the plans did not show a cycle route through the development 
and therefore did not fulfil the Eastbourne Cycling Strategy.  
 
East Sussex County Council were currently assessing an application for 
highway works to Kings Drive in relation to the development which 
included a pelican crossing and bus stop improvements in line with the 
previous outline permission for the development of the site. 
 
Members discussed the application and felt that the applicant had not 
listened to their previous requests regarding the ‘softening’ of the 
apartment blocks.  The committee expressed the wish to work with the 
applicants further to ensure a high quality landmark design in light of the 
prominent location of the site.  Members declined to consider the revised 
plans presented for consideration and requested that Officers should 

Page 212



5 

Planning 

Tuesday, 29 October 2013 

 
negotiate with the applicant to secure improved designs for the 
development via a new application. 
 
Members re-affirmed their decision of 1st October to refuse permission for 
the reserved matters application based on the originally submitted plans. 
 
NB: Councillor Liddiard withdrew from the room whilst the item was 
considered. 
 
RESOLVED A : (By 6 votes to 1) That the consideration of the revised 
plans presented be declined 2) That Officers be requested to negotiate with 
the applicant to secure improved designs for the development via a new 
application.  
 
RESOLVED B: (By 5 votes with 2 abstentions) That the applicants be 
advised that the committee re-affirmed their decision of 1st October 2013 to 
refuse permission for the reserved matters application based on the 
originally submitted plans. 
 

52 2 Priory Road.  Application ID 130492. 
 

130492 - 2 Priory Road - Conversion of existing bungalow and erection of 
two storey extension over the existing bungalow and single storey 
extension to the rear of the existing bungalow to create 2 one-bedroom 
flats and 2 two-bedroom flats – ST ANTHONYS.  Six letters of objection 
had been received.  The relevant planning history for the site was detailed 
within the report. 
 
The observations of Archaeological Services, Strategic Housing, Planning 
Policy and Highways were summarized within the report. 
 
RESOLVED: (By 7 votes to 1) That permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions: 1) Time limit 2) Materials to be submitted 3) Foul and 
surface water details to be submitted 4) Position of new access 5) Visibility 
splays 6) Car parking prior to occupation in accordance with approved 
layout 7) Car park details to be supplied incorporating details to prevent 
surface water running onto the footway 8) Cycle storage prior to occupation 
in accordance with approved layout 9) Construction times 10) In 
accordance with approved plans 11) Prior to the development commencing 
a scheme for hard and soft landscaping shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details as submitted shall 
show a low level means of enclosure and or low level planting (under 
600mm in height) adjacent to the  parking area facing Priory Road; this 
means of enclosure shall be implemented at the site prior to the first 
occupation of any of the residential units hereby commencing and be 
retained as such thereafter. 
 

53 Summerdown Sports Field, Compton Drive.  Application ID 130557 
(PPP). 

 

130557 (PPP) - Summerdown Sports Field, Compton Drive - Erection 
of timber sports pavilion and dugout shelter. New sportscourts with 
perimeter fencing – OLD TOWN.  11 objections had been received. 
 

Page 213



6 

Planning 

Tuesday, 29 October 2013 

 

 

The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report. 
The observations of the Arboricultural Officer were summarised within the 
report. 
 
NB: Councillor Jenkins was not present for the introduction of this item and 
therefore did not take part in making the final decision on this application. 
 
RESOLVED:  (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions: 1) Standard Time Condition 2) Development in 
accordance with approved plans 3) Retention of hedge fronting Compton 
Drive 4) Fence to be permanently coloured green 5) Submission of samples 
of finish of timber stain and felt shingles 6) Submission of details of position 
and foundations of dugout, and protection of root plate during construction 
7) No floodlighting of any fashion shall be permitted to be used anywhere at 
the site in relation to the development hereby approved. 
 

54 South Downs National Park Authority Planning Applications.  
 

None reported. 
 
NOTED. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 8.15 pm 
 
 
 
 
 Councillor Ungar (Chairman) 
  
 

Page 214



1 

 

Wednesday, 6 November 

2013 

at 6.00 pm 

 
 

 

 

Scrutiny 
Membership:- 
 Councillor Warner (Chairman) Councillor Shuttleworth (Deputy-Chairman) 

Councillors Harris (as substitute for Murray) Cooke and Ungar 
 
(Apologies for absence were reported from Councillor Belsey, Councillor Murray and 
Councillor Coles) 
 
 

 
10 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2013  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2013 were submitted and 
approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct 
record.   

11 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by 
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of 
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct (please see 
note at end of agenda).  

 

None declared. 
 

12 Exclusion of the Public  
 

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as otherwise 
there was a likelihood of disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. The relevant 
paragraphs of schedule 12A and descriptions of the exempt information are 
shown in the item below. (The requisite notices had been given under 
regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.)  
 

13 Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline - Investment and Change of 
Governance [BPF]  

 

The committee considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer providing 
planned development proposals for the company, including governance, 
funding and delegation arrangements.   
 
Exempt information reasons: 3 -  information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information) and 4 - information relating to any consultations or 
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter. 

 
The meeting closed at 8.30 pm 
 Councillor Warner (Chairman) 
  
 

Agenda Item 11g

Page 215



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13a

Page 217

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 224

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 225

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 229

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 241

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 272

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14a

Page 273

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 278

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14b

Page 279

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Calendar of Meetings 2014/15
	8 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme
	Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme - Appendix A
	Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme - Appendix B

	9a Eastbourne Community Safety Plan
	9b Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan
	9c Information Technology Provision for Elected Members
	9d Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 -2019 and Cumulative Impact Policy. Licensing Act 2003
	9e Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline - Investment and change of governance
	Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline Œ Investment and change of governance - Public report of Chief Finance Officer

	11a Minutes of meeting of Audit and Governance held on 25 September 2013
	11b Minutes of meeting of Planning Committee held on 1 October 2013
	11c Minutes of meeting  of Licensing Act Committee held on 7 October 2013
	11d Minutes of meeting of Conservation Area Advisory Group held on 8 October 2013
	11e Minutes of meeting of Cabinet held on 23 October 2013
	11f Minutes of meeting of Planning Committee held on 29 October 2013
	11g Minutes of meeting of Scrutiny Committee held on 6 November 2013
	13a Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline - Investment and Change of Governance
	Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline Œ Investment and change of governance - Cabinet covering report
	Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline Œ Investment and change of governance - Cabinet report
	Wealden and Eastbourne Lifeline Œ Investment and change of governance - Cabinet report appendix

	14a Minutes of meeting of Cabinet held on 23 October 2013.
	14b Minutes of meeting of Scrutiny Committee held on 6 November 2013

